
 Special Called  Chester County Transportation Meeting September 20, 2021.  

      SPECIAL CALLED  
 CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, September 20th, 2021 at 5:50 PM
R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex

 1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of minutes
a. September 7th, 2021, CCTC Minutes.

3. Old Business
a. CTC to choose and approve the 2022 Road Paving in district six.

4. Adjourn



 

                      Chester County Transportation Meeting September 7, 2021.                        
 

 

        CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
                         Tuesday, September 7th , 2021 at 5:30 PM 
           R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
               1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers  
      

                             Minutes   

Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan,  Councilman 
Mike Vaughn, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters. Councilman 
Pete Wilson arrived at 5:32pm and Councilman William Killian arrived at 5:35pm.  

            
1.    Call to Order 

2.    Approval of minutes 
             a.   July 6th, 2021 CCTC Minutes. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn.  
                 Vote was 4-0 to approve.  

 

  3.    Old Business  
 a.   Update on Baseball Alley- Public Works Director Robert Hall. 
        Mr. Hall stated Council was aware of the issue at Baseball Alley, he had reached out to the Dennis  
                    Corporation to ask for a change order.  He recommended Council spend $23,500 dollars to add  the four  

parking spaces and correct the drainage that was in the budget. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve,   
second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote was 4-0 to approve. Councilman Wilson and Killian abstained. 
   

             b.   Update regarding Pedestrian Crossing Agreement at Railroad at Pizza Hut. – Attorney Winters    
Attorney Winters stated she had reached out to the railroad, and they were not willing to change the agreement.  
She was told and she quoted “ railroads have never found a crossing they’re happy with.”  She stated she was 
told by them something always happens, even when crossing in a wheelchair could hit the rail of the train and 
tip over and get injured. They will not relinquish any of the liability that was in the agreement that’s placed 
back on the county. That also includes any repair to the crossing and negligence that happens the county is 
responsible. She recommended the County not sign the agreement since it would put all the liability back on 
them. She stated Matt Gedney recommended putting up signs stating something like  “ends county’s 
maintenance.”  
 
Councilman Wilson suggested putting up barricades and signage for now, he stated things could change with 
maybe possible developments coming and there would be a reason to cross the track, but for now putting the 
barricades up is an easy way out. He motioned to put up barricades and signage, second by Vice Chairman 
Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

  
  4.   New Business  

 a.  CTC to choose and approve the 2022 Road Paving List from each district.  
      Council chose Golden Maple, Old Pavilion, Appaloosa Ridge, Poverty Hollow, Barber Creek and Thomas  
      Davis. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
 
 
 



 

                      Chester County Transportation Meeting September 7, 2021.                        
 

 
 b.   Discussion regarding Georgetown Road.- Attorney Winters. 
        Attorney Winters stated this road had been discussed before, the road is a state road and ends at the pavement. 
        She asked Bill Coleman to go out to see what could be done. The Trotters cannot access their  property because 
        of the way it is set up, the road ends and no one claims ownership. At one time through the research done by   

Mr. Coleman recently, the school board had asked if the County could throw some gravel down so the bus 
could turn around. In 2017 the property owner had stated they did not want the bus to turn around on their 
property and asked for the County to stop putting gravel down so the practice was discontinued. It is referred 
to on an SCDOT map where the road ends. It's shown as an unpaved county road, but we couldn't find any 
evidence that it is a county road. And so, I think that it begs the question, does the county take this road on to 
adopt it, and put into our system?  

 
Mr. Coleman stated there was a gate about 200 yards to the end of the pavement which is at the end of DOT 
then around 100 feet where you could tell a bus used it to turnaround. He stated at one time through his research 
he found the guy who owned it told the county he didn't want them on it anymore. He didn’t want no one on 
it. 
 

Attorney Winters stated at one point in time there was a roadwork request made by a gentleman who lives on 
the road that the owners of the property would need to call in and request the county take over maintenance of 
the turnaround and to set up easement through the county attorney which has not been done. That part of the 
road has probably been maintained for the last twenty years. She asked Mr. Coleman what he suggested doing. 
 
Mr. Coleman stated throwing a couple loads of rock from the end of the road to the gate, once the county does 
that that section becomes the counties.  Councilman Wilson motioned to maintain to the gate, second by 
Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
                c.   CTC to consider approval of surface prep and painting Exit 65 Bridge. Gateway Steering Committee  
                    voted 9-0 to approve. Sylvia Jennings, Chair of the gateway steering committee stated the bridge had not  

       been maintained and would like approval to have exit 65 cleaned, painted and have sidewalks installed.  
       Councilman Wilson stated he did not doubt the need but felt the money could come from grants instead of  
       C-fund money.  
       Vice Chairman Branham said, if possible, the projects could be combined when seeking grants. Council decided  
       to add this back to next regular transportation meeting to see if grants could be found.  

 
              d .   Request to reimburse the Recycling Department for sign material from May 2021 to August 2021 in 

        the  amount of $ 3422.03. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham.  
        Vote 6-0 to approve.  
  

              e.   Request to reimburse the Road Department for road maintenance from July 6, 2021 to August 12, 2021  
                    in the amount of $ 19,652.96. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson.  
        Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

  5.    Adjourn-Vice Chairman Branham motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to adjourn.  

  Time: 6:20 pm  

 

  

 



District 6 

 

Category 1 Minor Patching and resurfacing  

Category 2 Major Patching and resurfacing 

Category 3 Rehabilitee base and resurface 

Category 4 Dirt 

 

County Roads 

 

Road Name                Length in miles           Estimated Cost          Priority#                  Scale          Houses        Category             Date Submitted 

Rice Street  0.120         $ 49,728.00                7        F                   2                    2                            6-28-2021 

Lockshire Street               0.130                         $ 64,519.00               11                               F                   6                    2                            6-28-2021 

 

 

County Commercial Road 

Road Name                Length in miles           Estimated Cost          Priority#                  Scale          Houses        Category             Date Submitted 

State Park Road               0.500                             $135,000                    2                              F                                         3                            9-8-2021 

 

 

  



 

                                                 Chester County Council Meeting September 20th, 2021                                     1 
 

CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
             R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                                                1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                                   Monday, September 20th, 2021, at 6:00PM 

         
        Agenda   

                       Interim Supervisor Dr. Wylie Frederick Presiding 
  
        
         
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3. Approval of Minutes 
   a.  September 7th, 2021 Council Minutes. 
   b.  September 10th, 2021 Special Called Council Minutes.  
 

4. Citizen Comments 

5. Public Hearing 

   a. 3rd Reading of 2021-10  An Ordinance To Establish Distribution of the Local Option Sales Tax.  
 
6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations  

               a. 3rd Reading of 2021-10  An Ordinance to Establish Distribution of the Local Option Sales Tax.  
 
   b. 2nd Reading of 2021-11 An Ordinance To Amend The Master Agreement Governing The York- 
                   Chester Industrial Park Between Chester County, South Carolina And York County, South  
                   Carolina So As To Enlarge The Park. 
 

 c.  2nd Reading of 2021-12 An Ordinance Adopting The Requirements Of The South Carolina Local  
     Government Development Agreement Act; Creating Uniform Requirements For The County’s  
     Executing And Delivering Development Agreements; And Other Related Matters. 

 
7. Old Business 

    a .  Update on current projects- Procurement Director Susan Cok. 

   b.   Update regarding mid-year economic development and Gateway Quarterly Report  Economic  
         Developer  Director Robert Long, Project Manager Kris Phillips and Event Planner Kimberly Starnes.   

     c .  From CCTC: 

    1. Action taken from the CTC 2022 Road Paving for district six.  

    d .  3rd Reading of CCMA21-02: Chester Land Holdings, LLC. Request Tax Map # 123-00-00- 032-000  
  located along Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC, be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned  
   Development) Planning Commission voted 3-4 to deny. 
 

 e .  3rd Reading of CCMA21-04: Chester Land Holdings, LLC. Request Tax Map # 123-00-00-078-000  
       located along Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC, be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned  

                      Development) Planning Commission voted 7-0 to deny. 



  Chester County Council Meeting September 20th, 2021   2 

f .  3rd Reading of CCMA21:20: Todd Marion Love request Tax Map # 115-00-00-023-000 located 
 on Lancaster Highway, Chester, SC be rezoned from GC (General Commercial) and R2 (Rural Two) 
 to ID-2 (Limited Industrial). Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve.  

g . 3rd Reading of CCMA21-21: HLC Holdings, LLC request Tax Map # 115-00-00-144-000 located on 
 Lancaster Highway, Chester, SC be rezoned from GC (General Commercial to ID-2 (Limited Industrial). 
 Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

h. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-22: Earl L. Evans request Tap Map # 069-07-01-026-000 located at 528 West
End Road, Chester, SC be rezoned from RG-2 (General Residential) to GC (General Commercial).
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve.

 i .  3rd Reading of CCMA21-24: US Developments request Tax Map # 079-04-02-020-000 located on 
 Village Drive, Chester, SC be rezoned from LC (Limited Commercial) to PD  (Planned Development). 
 Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve.         

 j . 3rd Reading of CCMA21-25: US Developments request Tax Map # 079-04-02-088-000 located on 
  Village Drive, Chester, SC be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to PD (Planned Development). 
 Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve.  

k. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-26: US Developments request a 28-acre portion of Tax Map # 079- 00-00-
032-000 located on Village Drive, Chester, SC be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to  PD (Planned
Development). Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve.

l . 2nd  Reading of CCMA21-27 Chris and Alma Hoskins request Tax Map # 122-01-03-010-000 located
at 4431 Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to GC (General Commercial).

 Planning Commission voted 4-0 to approve. 

8. New Business

a. Council to consider the approval of a recycling and disposal service agreement-Public Works
Director Robert Hall and  Recycling/Litter Control Coordinator Katie Fischer.

b. Setting the 2021 Tax Millage-Auditor Donnie Wade and Treasurer Tommy Darby.

c. Council to consider the approval for Lewis Fire Protection District to apply for a $10,000 dollar grant
from the SC Forestry Commission with a $5000 dollar match.  Jay Williams.

9. Boards and Commissions-None

10. Executive Session

a. To receive a legal update regarding Opioid litigation. Attorney Winters.
b. To receive legal advice regarding Chester Research & Development Park. Attorney Winters.

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session

a. Action taken regarding the legal update for Opioid litigation.
b. Action taken regarding legal advice for Chester Research & Development Park.

12. Council Comments

13. Adjourn
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. 
Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board 
at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 



 

                                                 Chester County Council Meeting September 20th, 2021                                     3 
 

     * * * P U B L I C  N O T I C E * * *    

Chester County Council has relaxed some of the COVID measures put into place for personal appearances at County Council 
meetings but continues to encourage social distancing while in County facilities. 

    

Guidelines for Addressing Council 

                                                          Citizens Comments: 

• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes 
 
                                                         Public Hearings: 

• Each speaker will be limited to a three-minute presentation 
                                                          When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address 
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed 
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council 
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed 

 

                             Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

• Use profanity 
• Stray from the subject 
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council 

     



 

                                          Chester County Council Meeting September 7th, 2021                                                          1 
 

          CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  
                 R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                           1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                                      Tuesday, September 7th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
            
       Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan,  
        Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman William Killian, Councilman Pete Wilson,  
        Clerk to Council Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters.   
 
                             
1. Call to Order- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order at 6:23pm. (CTC meeting ran late). 

2.      Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation- Pledge was recited in unison; Councilwoman Guy gave the  
     invocation. 

3. Approval of Minutes-August 16th, 2021 Council Minutes.   
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

4. Citizen Comments 
Mark Wyatt spoke and was in favor of the rezoning requests on Village Drive. 

5. Public Hearing -None 

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

     a. 2nd Reading of 2021-10  An Ordinance to establish distribution of the Local Option Sales Tax.  
                   Treasurer Tommy Darby stated the county revenue fund for 2021 brought in $940,000 dollars and 
                   represented around 28% of the total received from the fund. The property tax credit fund represented 
                   around 72%. The ordinance would give some direction as to how the funds would be allocated.  
                   Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
     b. 1st Reading of 2021-11 An Ordinance to amend the master agreement governing the York- 
                    Chester Industrial Park between Chester County, South Carolina And York County, South  
                    Carolina so as to enlarge the park. Vice Chairman Branham asked which park was this. Attorney  
                    Winters stated this was for Gallo and would be included in the York and Chester industrial park.  Vice  
                    Chairman Branham stated he thought Gallo would be going with Lancaster, Attorney Winters stated  
                    Gallo had given it to  York County early on. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by  
                    Councilman Jordan. Vote was 5-1 to approve. Vice Chairman Branham opposed.  
 
     c. Resolution 2021-15 A Resolution to authorize the County of Chester, by Chester County Council to  
                    sell certain vehicles of the Sheriff’s Office Identified herein upon such terms and conditions as  
                   described. Councilman Jordan motioned to approve along with funds from the sell be put back into the  
                   Sheriff’s vehicle fund, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.   

 

7. Old Business  
   a. Discussion regarding the disposition of the Animal Shelter- Procurement Director Susan Cok. 

Dr. Frederick stated there had been a lot of discussion concerning the animal shelter and which plan to go 
with, renovate the old building or build a new one. Looking at and identifying the funding sources, to add 
on to the old shelter would cost 1.4 million dollars which would consist of renovating by adding a new 
roof, new HVAC units, replace old wiring and other cosmetic purposes. The current building would also 
need to be brought up to current building codes as well. Building a new shelter would cost around 3.3 
million dollars and would be the better option since all the above issues would be eliminated, a new 
location would provide future expansion opportunities such as veterinarian’s office space and areas for 
large animals, etc.  A new shelter would also provide space for an adoption side where people interested 
in adopting could see the animals. He stated a new facility would change the perception of the old shelter.  
 



 

                                          Chester County Council Meeting September 7th, 2021                                                          2 
 

Councilwoman Guy stated the square footage for a new building would be about the same size and the 
same amount of room as the old one. She did not see building a new one the same size as the old one, she 
knows $250,000 dollars was spent a few years ago on the old one and thinks more renovations to it would 
be better than building a new shelter. 
 
Councilman Wilson stated seeing the 3.3-million-dollar price tag to build a new shelter was hard to wrap 
his mind around that but seeing the 1.4-million-dollar price tag to renovate the old shelter to him it would 
be hard to spend that kind of money. He toured the shelter a while back and the condition of the animals 
were not bad, but you could tell the shelter was dated. The shelter doesn’t have insulation, it has old 
equipment and a lot of inefficiencies. To his understanding the new building would be on Armory Road, 
the older parts of the shelter would have to be demolished. We don’t need to have two animal shelters. He 
asked if this was approved to build a new shelter, he would like for Council to see the plans as they are 
being developed, Council wants to make sure that if they go that route and spend that much money, they 
do a good job. The funding has been identified. 
 
Treasurer Darby stated the county was working on multiple projects, three sources had been identified for 
all the projects and working through some of the red tape of those funding sources. The animal shelter fits 
within one of the pots of money and the funds are available and he was comfortable with the project.  
 
Vice Chairman Branham stated he agreed with building a new shelter instead of renovating the old one. If 
you look at the jail where the new part was added on to the old part, there were a lot of deficiencies there. 
The square footage for the new building would be the same as the old one but would be designed to where 
additions could be added with no problem.  
 
Councilman Vaughn stated he had gone back and forth whether to renovate or build a new shelter but now 
agrees this would be a real step forward for Chester County and a better option for county taxpayers. He 
stated not only will we have a new shelter, but also looking at changing the way the shelter is operated.  
 
Councilman Jordan stated he couldn’t see putting 1.4 million dollars into the old shelter, the future area 
for the new building would also give better options to house larger animals as well.  
 
Attorney Winters asked if the cost to build the new shelter included demolishing the old shelter.  
 
Procurement Director Susan Cok stated no. 
 
Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick asked Public Works Director Robert Hall if his staff could do the job. Mr. 
Hall stated yes. Vote was 4-2 to approve. Councilman Killian and Councilwoman Guy opposed.  

 

b.  2nd Reading of CCMA21:20: Todd Marion Love request Tax Map # 115-00-00-023-000 located on  
     Lancaster Highway, Chester, SC be rezoned from GC (General Commercial) and R2 (Rural Two)  
     to ID-2 (Limited Industrial). Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve.  
     Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
c.  2nd Reading of CCMA21-21: HLC Holdings, LLC request Tax Map # 115-00-00-144-000 located  
    on Lancaster Highway, Chester, SC be rezoned from GC (General Commercial to ID2  
    (Limited Industrial).  Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to  

                     approve second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.    
 

d.  2nd Reading of CCMA21-22: Earl L. Evans request Tap Map # 069-07-01-026-000 located at 528  
    West End Road, Chester, SC be rezoned from RG-2 (General Residential) to GC  
    (General Commercial). Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to  

                     approve second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.    
 

  e.  2nd Reading of CCMA21-24: US Developments request Tax Map # 079-04-02-020-000 located  
       on Village Drive, Chester, SC be rezoned from LC (Limited Commercial) to PD (Planned  



 

                                          Chester County Council Meeting September 7th, 2021                                                          3 
 

       Development). Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve  
       with a reverter clause and a 12-month time frame, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 4-2 to  

          approve. Councilman Jordan and Vaughn opposed. 
 

     f.   2nd Reading of CCMA21-25: US Developments request Tax Map # 079-04-02-088-000 located  
          on Village Drive, Chester, SC be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to PD (Planned Development).   
          Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve with a  
          reverter clause and a 12-month time frame, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 4-2 to approve.  
         Councilman Jordan and Vaughn opposed. 
 
    g.   2nd Reading of CCMA21-26: US Developments request a 28-acre portion of Tax Map #  
          079-00-00- 032-000  located on Village Drive, Chester, SC be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) 
          to PD (Planned Development). Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve. Councilwoman 
          Guy motioned to approve with a reverter clause and a 12-month time frame, second by Vice  
          Chairman Branham. Vote 4-2 to approve. Councilman Jordan and Vaughn opposed.  

 
  h.  Update regarding a multi-year lease for servers and licensing agreement in the amount of 
       $ 77,354.27 dollars. - IT Director David Schuelke 

Mr. Schuelke stated he visited council last time regarding this, and it was approved with the contingent 
on the lease contract being changed? The issue with that is the lease contract cannot be changed because 
it references state contract. And when state contracts are put into place that can't be changed until the 
period of that date.  
 
Attorney Winters stated there was a dichotomy between the actual purchase agreement and then the lease 
document, the lease document used the language of as is, the purchase agreement says new. She and 
David  went back and forth with the lease people and the Dell folks.  Ultimately, she was comfortable 
with the fact the County would be getting new equipment. The only reason she had that concern was 
because of an issue years ago with copiers with a similar situation. The document had we are leasing the 
products to you as is but that is the leasing company. They are not supplying  the equipment and we got 
assurances in writing from Dell that this would not be as is but new equipment. She asked counsel, if they 
would re approve without the caveat that number four in the lease agreement needed to be changed. 
Because they won't change it. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman 
Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
    i. From CCTC: 9-7-2021  

          1 . Action taken on Baseball Alley.  Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve $23,500 for parking and   
                          drainage, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.    
 

         2.  Action taken for the CTC 2022 Road Paving List for each district.  
  Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
         3 . Action taken for the surface prep and painting for Exit 65 Bridge. Taken as information. 
  

                      4 . Action taken to reimburse the Recycling Department for sign material in the amount of $ 
                           3422.03. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to  
                           approve. 
 
                      5 . Action taken to reimburse the Road Department for road maintenance in the amount of  
                          $ 19,652.96. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to  
                           approve.  
 
 
 
 



 

                                          Chester County Council Meeting September 7th, 2021                                                          4 
 

 8.         New Business 
   a.  Council to consider the approval of Autoagent iPayment Proposal Agreement to process all  
         online tax payments.- Treasurer Tommy Darby. 
         Mr. Darby stated he found a solution that would be no cost to the County and would be a little cheaper 
         for taxpayers. He asked Council if they would take this as information for now since he was in talks   
         with the current company who came back with a proposal.  

 
       b.  Council to consider the acceptance of a FEMA Fire Act Grant for $207,797.00 dollars to purchase  
                     a new EMS  unit with a match of $9,895.10 dollars.- T. Melton. Richburg Assistant Fire Chief.  
                     T. Melton stated with Council’s approval they would use the money to purchase a new EMS unit, and use  

        the old one for a spare. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve $9895.10 to purchase the new unit,  
        second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
                c.  Council to consider adding current staff for EMS 6 and EMS 7. - EMS Director Britt Lineberger. 

Mr. Lineberger stated since the COVID virus had spiked  over the last three weeks 100% of every hospital 
in five counties had been on diversion. They cannot honor that request, but it did mean when they 
transported a patient to a hospital they would have to wait. The average wait time was around an hour 
and half.  He had checked with Mr. Darby. And they have determined that COVID money from the 
federal government, the reimbursable money is still available, they need to put two more trucks on to 
backfill. If given permission to put the trucks back on it’s already within the schedule and payroll  for 
COVID and coded that way for that purpose. 
 
Treasurer Darby stated originally, they weren't positive, how the federal funds would flow. Basically, 
they were going to fund those trucks and set aside 250,000, whether it was going to be reimbursed or not, 
I think right now we're positive and certain that those monies are reimbursable. He doesn’t think the 
County would have to appropriate any level, if it came to a point where we didn't get reimbursed, we 
could put a number on it. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 
6-0 to approve.  

 
    d.  Council to consider the approval for the Sheriff’s Office to apply a grant from the Chester  
                      Healthcare Foundation  to purchase a medium sized drone for use by the Sheriff’s Office and other  
                      County offices. -Captain David Peeples. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by  
                      Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
    e.  Council to consider the approval for the Sheriff’s Office to apply for a grant from the Lutz  
                     Foundation to purchase a large sized drone for use by the Sheriff’s Office and other county offices.-  
                     Captain David Peeples. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan.  
                     Vote  6-0 to approve. 
 
     f.  1st Reading of CCMA21-27 Chris and Alma Hoskins request Tax Map # 122-01-03-010- 000 located  

 at 4431 Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to GC (General    
 Commercial). Planning Commission voted 4-0 to approve. Councilman Jordan motioned to approve  
 with a reverter clause if the business ceases operations the property would revert back to R2 zoning,  
 second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
9.          Boards and Commissions  

    a. Appointment to the Parks & Recreation Board.- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick.  
        Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick motioned to appoint Forest Baker, second by Vice Chairman Branham. 
         Vote 6-0 to approve.  
  
    b. Resignation from the Chester Metropolitan District Commission- County Council. 
         Councilman Jordan motioned to approve Chris Winters resignation, second by Vice Chairman Branham. 
         Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 



 

                                          Chester County Council Meeting September 7th, 2021                                                          5 
 

 
10.        Executive Session- Councilman Jordan motioned to go to executive session, second by Councilwoman  
              Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
  
    a.  To receive legal advice regarding Project 2024. Attorney Winters. 

    b.  To receive legal advice regarding Project 2043. Attorney Winters. 

    c.  To receive legal advice regarding Project 2106. Attorney Winters. 

    d.  To receive legal advice regarding development agreements. Attorney Winters.  

   e.  To receive legal advice regarding a contractual matter for Gallo Wine. Attorney Winters. 

        f.   To receive legal advice regarding pandemic procedures. Attorney Winters.  

11.       Council Actions Following Executive Session-Councilwoman Guy motioned to go back to regular  
             session, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
    a. Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2024. Taken as information only. 

    b. Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2043. Taken as information only. 

                c. Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2106. Taken as information only. 

    d. Action taken regarding legal advice for development agreements.  

        Councilman Jordan motioned to approve  in title only an ordinance adopting the requirements of the  
                    South Carolina local government Development Act, creating uniform requirements for the counties  
                    executing and delivering development agreements and other related matters, second by Councilman 
                    Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

Councilman Jordan motioned to approve in title only an ordinance to approve the execution and delivery 
of a project agreement between the County and Project Village Drive and other related matters, second by 
Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

Councilman Wilson motioned to approve in title only an ordinance to approve the execution and delivery 
of a development agreement between the County and Project Winchester and other related matters, 
second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
Councilman Wilson motioned to approve in title only an ordinance to approve the execution and delivery 
of a development agreement between the County and Project Cheswick and other related matters, second 
by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

   e. Action taken regarding a contractual matter for Gallo Wine. Taken as information only. 

   f.  Action taken regarding pandemic procedures.  
                Council encouraged all employees to become vaccinated if they have not done so, with possible  
                    incentives for those who have been. And for those to become vaccinated by giving them a day off. They  
                    must show proof that they have been fully vaccinated. Council encouraged county employees to  wear  
                    masks, and to socially distance themselves.  
12.      Council Comments-None 

13.      Adjourn- Vice Chairman Branham motioned to adjourn, second by Councilwoman Guy. 
            Vote 6-0 to adjourn.  Time 9:45 PM. 
 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 
News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 



 

           CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  

             R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                            1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 
                            Friday, September 10th,  2021, at  9:00 AM  

 
                                                 

                MINUTES 

Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Pete Wilson,  
Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilman William Killian,  Attorney Joanie Winters and Karen Lee, Clerk to 
Council.  Councilwoman Guy came into the meeting at 5:10 pm. Absent: Councilman Brad Jordan with 
prior notification.        

1.    Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.  

2.    Ordinances/Resolutions /Proclamations 

       a. 2021-16 A Resolution to recognize Courage, South Carolina as an unincorporated area of  Chester 
           County.  Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to  

 approve.  County Attorney Winters stated  the resolution describes an unincorporated area as an 

area within the county that is administered as part of a larger administrative division. It falls within 

the purview of the county as opposed to an incorporated area, which, much like the city of Chester, 

the town of Great Falls, they are incorporated. We have many unincorporated areas in the county. It 

will remain an unincorporated area, but will it'll be referred to as Courage. In trying to explain what 

that means are related to areas like Blackstock, Indian Land in Lancaster, that's not really the name of 

that town. It's the name of the community. And so, this will be the Courage community, but it'll have 

its own zip code.  

 

Vice Chairman Branham stated he would  like to thank Mr. Martin, the mayor of Fort Lawn for 

recognizing the importance of this new industry and given them the benefits of being incorporated in 

that area. And I just like to say thank you to them and that community because it will be a large asset 

to the Fort Lawn community and to Chester County. 

 

           Councilman Vaughn  agreed he was delighted to have a new unincorporated area in his district and a 

new name to be one of his favorite names in the future “Courage.” Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
3.    Adjourn-Councilman Wilson motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 5-0 to adjourn.  

        Time: 9:10 am.  

 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 

 

  

                                         Chester County Special Called Meeting September 10th, 2021 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2021-10 
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH DISTRIBUTION OF THE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 
 
 WHEREAS, the South Carolina General Assembly enacted S.C. Code 1976, §4-10-
10, et al, (the “Act”) pursuant to which the county governing body may impose a sales 
and use tax in an amount not to exceed one (1) percent, subject to the favorable results 
of a referendum, within the county area for a specific purpose or purposes; and  
  
 WHEREAS, Chester County Council did hold a referendum passing the Local 
Option Sales Tax (“LOST”) in November 1993; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Act, Chester County has collected and used 
these funds as property tax credits since 1994 from two funds that are received, namely 
the Property Tax Credit Fund and the County Revenue Fund; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County has collected and returned over Fifty (50) Million 
Dollars to the Chester County taxpayers through the Property Tax Credit fund, and 
 
 WHEREAS, S.C. Code §4-10-50 states that the County may at its discretion use 
the County Revenue Fund as an additional property tax credit, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County Council wishes to retain the County Revenue Fund 
going forward to maintain current millage rates and to allow the County to meet current 
operating needs, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County taxpayers will continue to receive a tax credit based 
on the same amount enjoyed to date with the added leveling of millage rates by this 
retention, 
 

WHEREAS, Chester County Council is empowered by the provisions of S.C. Code 
Ann. §4-9-30(5), as amended to enact ordinances and policies relating to the fiscal 
management of the County in accordance with existing laws, and regulations. 
 
 



2 
 

 
        Ordinance No. 2021-10 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS HEREBY 
ADOPTED: 
 
 Chester County Council does hereby determine that the distribution of the Local 
Option Sales Tax shall be as follows: 
 
Property Tax Credit Fund: 100% refunded to taxpayers of the County as a credit 
 
County Revenue Fund: 100% retained by the County for current operating needs 
 
This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption by the Chester County Council on the 
date of the final reading approval. 
 
Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2021. 
 
CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wylie Frederick 
Interim Supervisor, Chester County 
 
 
Attest: 
 
By:________________________ 
Karen Lee 
Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
First Reading:  8-16- 2021 
Second Reading: 9-7- 2021  
Public Hearing: 9-20- 2021  
Third Reading: ________ ___, 2021  
 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
 
 







 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No.2021-11 
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 

 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MASTER AGREEMENT GOVERNING THE YORK-

CHESTER INDUSTRIAL PARK BETWEEN CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND 

YORK COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

 
E. & J. GALLO WINERY (PROJECT MAGMA) 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 12-03-12A enacted by Chester County Council, 

Chester County entered into a Master Agreement Governing the York-Chester Industrial Park 

dated as of December 31, 2012, with York County (as amended from time to time, the 

“Agreement”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1.01(a) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park 

created thereby (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to adoption of an approving resolution or 

ordinance increasing the Park’s boundaries by the County Council of Chester County and delivery 

of the approving resolution or ordinance and a description of the additional parcel to be included 

in Chester County’s property exhibit to the Agreement to York County; and 

 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Chester County to E. & J. 

Gallo Winery (also known as Project Magma), it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be 

enlarged to include certain parcels in Chester County constituting the Project Magma project site. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Chester County Council that Exhibit A-1 to the 

Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Chester 

County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 1.01(a) of 

the Agreement, upon delivery to York County of this approved Ordinance or adoption by York 

County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to include such 

property on Exhibit A-1, without further action by either county. 

 
 
 
 



 

  
 

         Ordinance No.2021-11 

 
 
 

Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2021. 
 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wylie Frederick 

Interim Supervisor, Chester County 
 
 
Attest: 
 
By:________________________ 
Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
First Reading:  9-7- 2021 
Second Reading: ________ ___, 2021  
Public Hearing: ________ ___, 2021  
Third Reading: ________ ___, 2021  
 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

         Ordinance No.2021-11 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
Addition to Exhibit A-1 to 

Master Agreement Governing the York-Chester Industrial 
Park dated as of December 31, 2012, as amended, 

between Chester County and York County 
 
 
 
 
The following parcels of land located on or near Highway 21 (Catawba River Road), Fort Lawn, 
Chester County, South Carolina, as described in more detail in that certain Survey for E. & J. 
Gallo Winery and R&V Title Agency and Chicago Title Insurance Company prepared by March E. 
Mills, SCPLS 10779, dated June 4, 2021, and recorded in the Office of the Clerk of Court for 
Chester County, South Carolina in Plat Cabinet E, Slide 96, at pages 2 and 3 on June 14, 2021: 

(a) All of TM No. 165-00-00-058-000 containing approximately 408 acres (“Parcels 1 and 
1a”) and TM No. 165-00-00-055-000 containing approximately 57 acres (“Parcel 2”); 

(b) a portion of TM No. 165-00-00-080-000, containing approximately 83 acres (“Parcel 
3a”); 

(c) all of TM No. 165-00-00-066-000, containing approximately 31 acres (“Parcel 4a”);  

(d) a portion of TM No. 165-00-00-065-000, containing approximately 26 acres (“Parcel 
5a”); 

(e) a portion of TM No. 165-00-00-091-000, containing approximately 75 acres (“Parcel 
7a”); and 

(f) a portion of TM No. 165-00-00-079-000, containing approximately 475 acres (“Parcel 
10a”). 

 

 



 

Ordinance No.2021-11 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Chester County, South Carolina, do hereby 

certify that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was 

given reading, and received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of_________, 

20__, _________, 20__ and _________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of 

County Council were present and voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the 

permanent records of the County Council. 

 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Karen Lee 

Clerk, Chester County Council 
 
 
Dated: _________, 2021 
 

4842-4729-1885 v.1 



 

PAGE 1 OF 5 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 

ADOPTING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ACT; 
CREATING UNIFORM REQUIREMENTS FOR THE COUNTY’S 
EXECUTING AND DELIVERING DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENTS; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Chester County Council (“County Council”), as the governing body of Chester 
County, South Carolina (“County”) finds: 

(a) the lack of certainty in the approval of development can result in a waste of economic and land 
resources, can discourage sound capital improvement planning and financing, can cause the cost of 
housing and development to escalate, and can discourage commitment to comprehensive planning; 

(b) assurance to a developer that upon receipt of its development permits it may proceed in accordance 
with existing laws and policies, subject to the conditions of a development agreement, strengthens 
the public planning process, encourages sound capital improvement planning and financing, assists 
in assuring there are adequate capital facilities for the development, encourages private 
participation in comprehensive planning, reduces the economic costs of development, allows for 
the orderly planning of public facilities and services, and allows for the equitable allocation of the 
cost of public services; 

(c) because the development approval process involves the expenditure of considerable sums of 
money, predictability encourages the maximum efficient utilization of resources at the least 
economic cost to the public; 

(d) public benefits derived from development agreements may include, but are not limited to, 
affordable housing, design standards, and on and off-site infrastructure and other improvements. 
These public benefits may be negotiated in return for the vesting of development rights for a 
specific period; 

(e) land planning and development involve review and action by multiple governmental agencies. The 
use of development agreements may facilitate the cooperation and coordination of the requirements 
and needs of the various governmental agencies having jurisdiction over land development; 

(f) development agreements will encourage the vesting of property rights by protecting such rights 
from the effect of subsequently enacted local legislation or from the effects of changing policies 
and procedures of local government agencies which may conflict with any term or provision of the 
development agreement or in any way hinder, restrict, or prevent the development of the project; 

(g) development agreements will provide a reasonable certainty as to the lawful requirements that must 
be met in protecting vested property rights, while maintaining the authority and duty of government 
to enforce laws and regulations which promote the public safety, health, and general welfare of the 
citizens of our State; 

(h) it is the intent of the County Council to encourage a stronger commitment to comprehensive and 
capital facilities planning, ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development, 
encourage the efficient use of resources, and reduce the economic cost of development; 

(i) this intent is effected by authorizing the appropriate local governments and agencies to enter into 
development agreements with developers, subject to the procedures and requirements of the South 
Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, codified in South Carolina Code 
Annotated section 6-31-10, et seq. (collectively, “Act”), and this Ordinance; and 



 

PAGE 2 OF 5 

                                                                                                        ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 

 

(j) this Ordinance must be regarded as supplemental and additional to the powers conferred in the 
County and other government agencies by other laws and must not be regarded as in derogation 
of any powers existing on the effective date of this chapter. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. Incorporation of Findings. The County hereby adopts and incorporates the findings 
contained in the “WHEREAS” clause above. 

Section 2. Adoption of State Law. The County hereby adopts and incorporates into the County Code, 
the Act, including all findings and requirements. 

Section 3. Development Agreement Requirements. In addition to any requirements for a valid 
development agreement as contained in the Act, the County adopts the list of requirements as contained on 
Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein by reference as if set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. 

Section 4. Development Agreement Approval Process. Prior to the consideration by the County 
Council of any proposed development agreement, the County Planning Director in consultation with the 
County attorney shall ensure the form, terms, and provisions of the proposed development agreement are 
consistent with the Act and the requirements of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. Additional Provisions. 

(a) The Supervisor/Chairman and all other appropriate officials of the County are hereby authorized to 
execute, deliver, and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required by the County to carry 
out, give effect to and consummate the transactions authorized by this Ordinance;  

(b) This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South 
Carolina; 

(c) This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following third reading by the 
County Council; 

(d) The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any section, phrase, or 
provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, 
that declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder; 
and 

(e) All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the conflict, 
hereby repealed. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE AND ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOW] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

PAGE 3 OF 5 

                                                                                                      ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 

 

 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:       
Dr, Wylie Frederick, Chair, County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 

[SEAL] 

Attest: 

       
Karen Lee, Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 

First Reading:  September 7, 2021                                                   
Second Reading: September 20, 2021 
Public Hearing:  October [], 2021 
Third Reading:  October [], 2021 



 

PAGE 4 OF 5 

                                                                                                                            ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 

 
EXHIBIT A 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

(A) a legal description of the property subject to the agreement and the names of the property’s legal 
and equitable owners. 

(B) the duration of the agreement which must comply with section 6-31-40 of the Act. 

(C) a representation by the developer of the number of acres of highland contained in the property 
subject to the agreement. 

(D) the then current zoning of the property and a statement, if applicable, of any proposed re-zoning of 
the property. 

(E) the development uses that would be permitted on the property pursuant to the agreement, including 
population densities, building intensities, and height. 

(F) a description of the public facilities that will service the development, including who provides the 
facilities, the date any new facilities, if needed, will be constructed, and a schedule to assure public facilities 
are available concurrent with the impacts of the development construction timeline for those facilities. If 
the agreement provides that the County shall provide certain public facilities, the agreement shall provide 
that the delivery date of the public facilities will be tied to defined completion percentages or other defined 
performance standards to be met by the developer. 

(G) a description, where appropriate, of any reservation or dedication of land for public purposes and 
any provisions to protect environmentally sensitive property as may be required or permitted pursuant to 
laws in effect at the time of entering into the agreement. 

(H) a description of all local development permits approved or needed to be approved for the 
development of the property together with a statement indicating that the failure of the agreement to address 
a particular permit, condition, term, or restriction does not relieve the developer of the necessity of 
complying with the law governing the permitting requirements, conditions, terms, or restrictions. 

(I) a finding that the development permitted or proposed is consistent or will be consistent by the time 
of execution of the agreement, with the County’s comprehensive plan and land development regulations. 

(J) a description, where appropriate, of any provisions for the preservation and restoration of historic 
structures. 

(K) a development schedule including commencement dates and interim completion dates at no greater 
than five-year intervals. 

(L) if more than one local government is made party to the agreement, a provision stating which local 
government is responsible for the overall administration of the agreement. 

(M) a listing of the laws and land development regulations that will apply to the development of the 
property subject to the agreement, including citation to specific ordinance numbers, portions of the County 
Code of Ordinances, or both. 

(N) a provision, consistent with section 6-31-80 of the Act, addressing the circumstances under which 
laws and land development regulations adopted after the execution of the agreement apply to the property 
subject to the agreement. 



 

PAGE 5 OF 5 

         ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 

 

(O) a provision stating whether the agreement continues to apply to the property or portions of it that 
are annexed into a municipality or included in a newly incorporated area and, if so, that the provisions of 
section 6-31-110 of the Act apply. 

(P) a provision relating to the amendment, cancellation, modification, or suspension of the agreement. 

(Q) a provision for periodic review, consistent with the provisions of the Act. 

(R) a provision addressing the effects of a material breach of the agreement, consistent with the 
provisions of the Act. 

(S) a provision that the developer, within 14 days after the County executes the Agreement, will record 
the Agreement with the County Clerk of Court. 

(T) a provision that the burdens of the Agreement are binding on, and the benefits of the Agreement 
shall inure to, the County and the developer. 

(U) a provision addressing the conditions and procedures by which the Agreement may be assigned, if 
applicable. 









 

 

  

 
Gateway Conference Center 
3200 Commerce Drive, Suite C 
Richburg, SC 29729 
803-789-0014 

 

 

QUARTERLY REPORT 

SUMMARY 

 
REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

09/15/2021 Quarterly Report Kimberly Starnes 

 
 
FREE EVENTS SUMMARY 

 
COVID-19 had a noticeable effect on free event requests. Due to social distancing, the number of rooms/size of rooms increased, which 
caused the value of each free event to increase. Technology requests also increased due to groups using ZOOM or MS Teams to connect 
with larger groups. Gateway staff provides free events with the same level of service paid events receive such as setting up tables, chairs 
and technology; on-site troubleshooting and COVID sanitation. Events using the parking lot and the inside restrooms also received COVID 
sanitation. 
 
Monthly free events are HR Roundtable, CDA, Boy Scouts and the I-77 Alliance. Gateway also provides meeting/event space to Economic 
Development projects when needed.  
 
Currently any entity requesting a free event, including our partners such as the Sheriff’s Office and the Chamber of Commerce, must 
complete a charitable request form that is signed off on by the county supervisor. As we move forward, free and/or regular event 
requests should be viewed strategically. The first consideration should be costs, not only rental but labor and supplies. Gateway is the 
most expensive rental facility owned by the county. Spreading free events out among the county’s rental facilities can ensure that the 
costs associated with free events is distributed evenly.  
 
Return on investment also needs to be a consideration with free events. Factoring in the benefits to the community are important. 
Holding an event with tourism or advertising value will provide a larger return on investment than a regular monthly community meeting. 
Free events at Gateway should be viewed as an opportunity to introduce Chester County to groups who may not be familiar with the area. 
Large events (paid and free) also have tourism benefits which are shared among the Gateway, local hotels and restaurants.  
 
It is time to look at how we award charitable requests and update the procedure. I have put together a report on how we can more 
equitably distribute free events among the Gateway Conference Center and the Chester Memorial Building and put a cap on the 
organizations which are awarded free events the most. Looking at the value to the county when it comes to free events is also included 
in the updated procedure suggestions.   
 
 
 



 

Page 2 
 

FREE EVENTS OVERVIEW- 2020 

 
PAID EVENTS EVNT TOTALS      

23 $141,453      

       

FREE EVNTS EVNT VALUE      

38 $88,276      

The difference in value between paid events and free events (not counting in monthly meetings, public hearings, sponsorships or 
county business) is $53,177. If B14 had not rented the Grand Ballroom for a month, we would have given away more than we rented. 

 

       

MNTHLY EVNTS VALUE YRLY VALUE  

4 (per month) $1,800 $21,600     

Monthly events include CDA, Boy Scouts, Chamber’s HR Roundtable and I-77 Alliance. Due to COVID these groups did not meet 
monthly. When they did meet it was not in their usual space. Moving forward all monthly meetings will meet in Meeting Room C, which 
is $450 or the L & C Conference Room, which is $210.  

 
 

      

SPONSOR EVNTS EVNT VALUE TECH REQ’D     

TruVista $1,280 YES     

MUSC $2,400 YES     

L & C Railroad $210 NO     

       

PRKG LOT EVNT BATHROOMS? # of EVNTS     

CCSD Graduation YES 1     

Hazel Pittman YES 1     

COVID Testing YES 11     

Trunk or Treat NO 1     

Carolina Poly  YES 1     

       

FREE ORG. # of EVNTS MULTI ROOMS? TECH? RENTAL VALUE   

CC Sheriff 5 YES YES $35,060   

Chester PD 7 NO YES $11,166   

Chamber. 3 YES YES $8,416   

CC Arts Council 1 YES YES $8,391   

AA Cultural Brkfst 1 NO YES $6,150   

Catawba Regional 1 NO YES $5,000   

Above are the groups requesting $5,000 or more in free rentals in 2020.   

  



 

Page 3 
 

EVENTS OVERVIEW-  JANUARY – SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
PAID EVNTS (JAN-SEP) EVNT TOTALS      

26 $77,113.50      

       

FREE EVNTS SPONSOR ECON DEV CC BUSINESS TOTAL FREE   

23 3 15 5 44   

$47,307 $6,270 $25,147 $6,464 $85,188   

Free events exclude monthly meetings, sponsor, economic development, and Chester County business. The difference in value 
between paid events and free events (excluding sponsors, ED and county business- county business includes public hearings) is 
$24,560.50. This is not including the value of the monthly meetings, many of which have resumed.   

 

       

MNTHLY EVNTS VALUE YRLY VALUE  

4 (per month) $1,800 $21,600     

Monthly events include CDA, Boy Scouts, Chamber’s HR Roundtable and I-77 Alliance. Due to COVID these groups did not meet 
monthly. When they did meet it was not in their usual space. Moving forward all monthly meetings will meet in Meeting Room C, which 
is $450 or the L & C Conference Room, which is $210.  

 
 

      

SPONSOR EVNTS EVNT VALUE TECH REQ’D     

TruVista (2) $3,870 YES     

Founders (2) $4,800 YES     

       

       

FREE ORG. # of DAYS MULTI 
ROOMS? 

TECH? RENTAL VALUE   

CC Sheriff 39 YES YES $29,233   

Chamber. 2 YES YES $7,200   

CC Arts Council 1 YES YES $9,188   

Above are the groups requesting $5,000 or more in free rentals per year. These events 
always request technology as well. Pricing does not reflect multi-room discount. 

  

  

  



 

Page 4 
 

ADVERTISING SUMMARY 

 
Gateway Conference Center spent $1,300 to do a paid word search to increase rentals. The paid search ran from mid-July to the end of 
August. During this time the Gateway had 27 tours and/or walkthroughs. Tours are customers who have not seen the building previously. 
Walkthroughs are when an existing customer returns to plan the room layout. They often bring someone with them at this appointment 
that has not currently seen the building, so walkthroughs often provide the opportunity to showcase the building to someone new. As a 
result of the tours/walkthroughs, we had eight new rentals and the average cost of each rental was $3,232. The plan is to next do social 
media ads on LinkedIn and Facebook.  
 
CORPORATE / MULTI-DAY SUMMARY 

 
Economic Director, Robert Long and Gateway events coordinator, Kimberly Starnes started a push this summer to bring in more events, 
particularly corporate events that are multi-day or multi-year. A summary of the total advertising efforts is noted above. The multi-
day/multi-year event results are below. We have created a form for these multi-day/year agreements but are waiting on verbiage 
approval from Joanie. 
 

MULTI-DAY/MULTI-YEAR VALUE 

 
NAME AMOUNT OF TIME TOTAL RENTAL     

Organization Once per year/3 
years 

$14,940     

Corporation 6 rentals total from 
2021 - 2022 

$14,400     

Organization 1 rental/3 days $20,136     

 

GOOGLE RATING 

 
  



 

Page 5 
 

PROFIT SUMMARY 

 

 
 
One year after Kimberly became a full-time employee in August of 2014 revenue increased 69.5%. After that point revenue never fell 
below $100,000 and after 2017 revenue stayed around $150,000, even though in 2019 the ballroom was shut down for five months 
due to renovation. In 2020 the building was closed for four months due to COVID, but revenue was increased 30% over the previous year.  
 
It is also important to note that due to Kimberly’s partnership building the following groups return either once a year or multiple times per 
year. The relationship with these groups has been nurtured throughout the years and the partnerships were retained during the COVID 
pandemic. Most of the groups with annual events affected by COVID-19 postponed until the next year.  
 

SCVCS 
Master Gardeners of York County 

Richburg Child Development Center 
Stay, Pray, Live (3-day event every other year) 

Dojo Organization Boise Cascade 
Jones Hamilton Outlaw Enterprises 
Duke Energy Carolina Poly 
National Wild Turkey Federation The Fellas 
The Kulture (fashion show) Outokumpu 
Mega Moose Board Game Convention Zimmer Biomet 

 
  

$70,952

$120,283
$104,973

$156,045 $152,936 $148,107

$192,492

REVENUE

Rental Revenue

2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020 2020 - 2021



 

Page 6 
 

 

EVENT AND VISITOR SUMMARY 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Explanation: Private includes birthday parties, weddings, reunions, etc. Charity is fundraising events. County Business includes the 
Sheriff’s Office, Arts Council, Chamber of Commerce, and School District. 
 
  

22.47%

48.31%

6.74%

7.86%

8.98%

5.61%

2019 Visitor Counties

York Chester Lancaster Richland Mecklenburg Other

25.49%

31.37%
13.72%

29.41%

2019 Event Types

Corporate Private Charity County Business



 

Page 7 
 

 
 
 
 
  

19.14%

48.93%
2.12%

6.38%

2.12%

21.27%

2020 Visitor Counties

York Chester Lancaster Richland Mecklenburg Other

23.40%

38.29%
8.51%

29.78%

2020 Event Types

Private Corporate Charity County Business



 

Page 8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

10%

53.33%

3.33%

10%

6.67%

16.67%

2021 Visitor Counties

York Chester Lancaster Richland Mecklenburg Other

38.70%

32.25%

0%

29.03%

2021 Event Types

Corporate Private Charity County Business



 

Page 9 
 

SURVEY RESULTS 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Page 10 
 

 
 
 











CCMA21-02: Chester Land Holdings, LLC. Request Tax Map # 123-00-00-032-000 located 
along Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC, be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned 
Development)  
 
Sara Shirley with America Engineering stepped to the podium and stated she is here to represent 
Chester Land Holdings. Ms. Shirley thanked the commissioners for letting her be here and said 
they are very excited about this project. I will give you just a little bit of context. I am sure you are 
very familiar with the site. We are very conveniently located between Chester, Rock Hill and 
Lancaster. Very easy drives from Ernandez Road and Edgeland Road. It is 336 acres for the one 
property and the balance 90 some to create 426 acres total.  
 
This is our master plan. This master plan was submitted along with a conceptual rezoning plan. It 
also provides levels of commitment for the site. In regard to storm water, density controls, 
community controls, architectural controls, things like that. I wanted to give you a little bit of the 
vision of the plan first and foremost.  
 
This is very well located along the intersection like I said. The southern half of the property is a 
Limited Commercial zone currently. The northern half of the property is a R2 zone. In the district 
Gateway Plan, there is actually two different zones that is recommended for the property. There is 
a little bit of the PD district that overrides our property and then some of it is what is called a rural 
residential. You will see that the existing zoning actually already allows, limited commercial, 
already allows townhomes and apartments. And the residential R2 district already allows for single 
family detached homes. So, one of the things we wanted to stress about the rezoning is that we are 
not actually asking for a change in use in any of these zones. But just for the flexibility in lot sizes.  
We understand that there is a great need for housing in Chester County. And a great need of 
housing for people all across all age groups, all across all income sectors. We are trying to meet 
all the needs of people that we can on the site by providing a mix of apartments, townhomes and 
single family detached lots. Even within the single family detached we will have different lot sizes, 
depending on the desires of the people. All of these will be for sale units except for the apartments 
which will be, of course, for rent at market rate.  
 
So, our vision. Winchester offers a master plan residential community with high quality homes. 
We will have at least an HOA if not multiple HOA’s. As part of the neighborhood, we have a tree 
lined boulevard that will go through the center of the site, through the center of the single family 
detached homes. Off of that boulevard we are going to have little neighborhood pockets. Little 
enclaves, so that you have got a smaller neighborhood within the whole. So, it does not feel like 
one large…. It is one large community, but it is several sub communities within the whole. Each 
one of these little enclave neighborhoods will have their own pocket parks. We have worked with 
the land in order to protect all the natural features that are on site. We are looking to provide 
buffering along the creek. And we are looking to make sure that we take care of all the stormwater 
control. So, anything that will drain off of our site we will treat and protect before it goes back into 
the earth.  
 
Some of the multiple family, multiple housing options, the apartments, and townhomes, we are 
even going to offer one- and two-story homes to help that market cover empty nesters looking for 
master downs. People that are looking for smaller homes, and people looking for larger homes for 



their big families. So, we have got all of our traditional design elements into this. The smaller 
enclaves, tree lined boulevards, pocket parks. We are going to have a club house and a pool to help 
serve the single family detached and the townhomes as part of that. And then the apartment 
community will have its own amenity package as well. There is an economy of scale that comes 
in, the more homes that you can have in a community means better amenities, more in the amenity 
package because it helps spread the HOA cost amongst more residents. It helps keep those HOA 
maintenance cost down. This is a long-time investment. We understand there… we are gearing for 
about two thousand homes over the span of ten to fifteen years. We are looking in providing an 
investment with the community.  We are all Carolina born and raised and we are looking to make 
sure that we bring the best product that we can to Chester County.  We are very excited about it 
because we know once we are here, we are going to be here for the long run. All of the 
infrastructure improvements that will be required as part of this plan, roadway improvements, 
water and sewer expansion, storm water improvements. All those would be responsibilities of the 
developer to finance, install and maintain.  
 
One of the questions we had asked, we actually held a voluntary community meeting as part of 
this. You will hear some of the community members tonight. We wanted to do this as a way to 
reach out to the community before we came before the Planning Commission and the County 
Council to help hear, we want to listen and hear what the citizens have to say, and we want to make 
sure we are meeting the goals of the county. Four of the themes of the Gateway district that we 
feel we can support as part of this neighborhood are creating destination, connecting nature and 
advancing infrastructure.  And most important, and probably the less obvious one is creating 
destination. Number one in the Gateway District Master Plan is the availability of additional 
housing and the quality of existing and future housing are important components of the continued 
growth and prosperity of the Gateway District. So, we feel we can meet that goal by proving variety 
of home choices for all of our age groups and incomes. High quality houses for all of those home 
choices, and meeting more market needs and housing demands through all those choices.  
 
We are meeting the goal of connecting nature by providing all of our natural features, access to all 
of our nature features on site through pedestrian networks, walking trails, pocket parks, access 
down to the creek, sidewalk connections. We really want people to get out and about and really 
experience nature and have the opportunity to do so.  
 
Lastly, advancing infrastructure. The existing infrastructure needs to be improved in order to 
continue the growth of the county. Our property is actually labeled as an undeveloped piece of 
property. And, as such is considered by the Gateway district an infield development. So, one of 
the goals is all of the infrastructure providers in the Gateway district support the growth and future 
development. The regulatory agencies are with them and working with them throughout the 
process to make sure all of the goals and regulations are met. We will be providing infield 
development for this undeveloped land. Providing access to water and sewer and the expansion of 
the existing system. And access to major roads, such as Edgeland Road and Interstate-77. And 
again, all of the infrastructure improvements that we are providing as part of this will be developer 
funded.  
 
Lastly, I just want to reiterate, we are here to provide homes for families. Active adults. Young 
adults. We are here to help meet that housing need. Even driving down tonight I see all of the now 



hiring signs for all of the industry. And industry is a major sector of the county. And I know that 
people are looking for homes to live here so that they do not have to commute in from outside. So, 
some of the amenities, I just want to go through really quick. Just some traditional amenities we 
want to offer as part of this, seating areas, playgrounds for the kids, walking trails, swimming pool, 
dog parks, dogs are important to our residents as well. Some of the homes that we offer, this is just 
a very small sampling to give you guys an idea of the quality of the homes we are looking at 
committing for here. We have single family detached products. We work with a range of national 
and retail home builders. So, it is not limited to just one builder. We will have a couple different 
builders as this whole packet. And some of our townhomes and apartment communities.   
 
So, for that, I am just here to answer questions. I am happy to answer anything the commission 
has, or neighbors, and I will be available.  
 
Chairman Raines asked the commissioners if anyone had any questions. Commissioner Grant 
asked in your homeowner’s association, I am suspecting you are going to have some restrictions 
for each style neighborhood, is that correct? Ms. Shirley said yes sir. So, we will probably have a 
main HOA and if we need to have any sub HOA’s as part of that, like if there is an age targeted or 
an age restricted community as part of that, they will have their own separate HOA. But yes, the 
HOA would be in place to make sure that all of the maintenance is taken care of, all of the open 
spaces are taken care of and fees are collected. Commissioner Grant said so eventually the 
company is going to take care of all the entry ways when you first start and then turn it over to the 
HOA. Is that correct? Ms. Shirley said correct. Usually what happens is the developer will have a 
fund that will help start up the process until there is enough homes to start putting the fees back 
into the HOA. So yes, that will be taken care of from day one. Commissioner Grant said my next 
question is water and sewer are already located on Edgeland Road? Ms. Shirley said yes sir. We 
have confirmed with both Chester Wastewater Authority and Chester Metropolitan. There is a 24-
inch force main that runs along Edgeland for sewer availability and there is a water main, I forget 
the size right now, but there is at least a 12-inch water main that runs along Edgeland. 
Commissioner Grant said so sewer and water are available, Ms. Shirley said yes.  
 
Commissioner Howell asks, the sewer plant that is there, do you have an idea how much more you 
are going to add to that sewer plant or are y’all planning to help pay for additions to that sewer 
plant? Ms. Shirley said yes, currently there is capacity that is available at ultimate build out, if we 
do get to the 2,000 homes that we are goaling, that we are trying to get to, that would require some 
upgrades to the treatment plant. But we are in conversations with the Chester Wastewater 
Authority who is working with AECom to put together the master plan for the whole project. They 
are very supportive, and they understand that this is part of the process. Any upgrades that would 
be required as part of putting our neighborhood on the system we would pay for. Commissioner 
Howell then ask what about the Fire Departments, the burden that you are going to add to them, 
have you been in any discussions with those about what they would need to accommodate you? 
Ms. Shirley said with the tax base increase and the revenue stream that would come as part of the 
neighborhood we would be putting taxes back into the system obviously to help pay for the fire 
and police improvement. Commissioner Howell said you are building almost a small city for a 
volunteer fire department. Ms. Shirley said understood.  
 



Vice Chairman Smith had a question about the density on your stand-alone houses. What are the 
range we are looking at per acre? I am not talking about the flood plans, the buildable acres. Ms. 
Shirley said I have not calculated that but most of our single-family homes reside on the 336 acres. 
Right now, our goal is about 1,500 homes. So that works out to be about 5 units per acre. You can 
correct me if you have a calculator. One of the commitments that we have as part of this plan is 
that we are going to cap the density at 6 units to the acre. And that includes the apartments and the 
townhomes. So, the apartments and the townhomes help drive up that density sort of artificially. 
So, the single family, as another commitment we have as part of this, at least 50% of the total 
homes will be single family detached homes. That is in the designing plan.   Vice Chairman Smith 
says so the numbers you are giving me is for the entire parcels? Ms. Shirley said oh no I’m sorry, 
so for the entire parcel, 426 acres including the second parcel to the South of us, the density cap 
would be 6 units to the acre. Which at maximum if we could possibly build out, which we are not 
realistically being able to get to would be 2,400 homes. Vice Chairman Smith then asks is that a 
deal breaker as far as a limit on that? Ms. Shirley asks a limit on…..Vice Chairman Smith says if 
we lower it? Ms. Shirley said no, because we understand that real site conditions will dictate what 
we can actually build on site. Things like the grading cost for what it would take to put a house on 
a steep slope for instance. Most of the time, we like to avoid walls, so, if that means dropping a lot 
or moving a road to adjust for that. Realistically we would make sure it works. The numbers work 
basically.  
 
Commissioner Williams ask how many square footages would each house have? Ms. Shirley said 
we have not determined that but on average it is anywhere from 1,500 to 2,000. And it might go 
up depending on the size homes that get put… we are putting a lot of our larger lots along the 
perimeter of the property. Those homes could be anywhere from 2,500 to 3,000 and up.  
 
Commissioner Howell asks the distance between your homes in your paperwork states the sides 
would be three feet. Ms. Shirley said that would be at very bare minimum. At minimum we would 
have six feet. Usually, we do about ten feet between the homes. Commissioner Howell asks can 
that be put on your PD that it would be a minimum of ten?  Commissioner Howell asks staff if that 
is something we could do? Ms. Shirley ask to change the commitment? Director Levister said that 
would be something we would do at the preliminary plat procedure. Right now, all we are doing 
is trying to get the rezoning, once we present the plat then y’all can make the recommendations of 
what you would like from what they present to the county. Commissioner Howell said from what 
I understand, most of this property where she is putting the townhomes and the apartments is 
already zoned for that, correct? Ms. Shirley said it is the LC. Director Levister said it is Limited 
Commercial. No, Ms. Shirley corrects him. The larger parcel is zoned R2. Limited Commercial is 
96 acres. Commissioner Howell ask the 96 acres is where you will be putting the apartments and 
townhomes. Ms. Shirley said yes sir. Commissioner Howell said that is already zoned for that, 
correct? Ms. Shirley said correct. Commissioner Grant said I assume that will be the first one to 
built out, right? Ms. Shirley said no, we actually are planning on possibly looking at the single 
family detached. Just because we have a lot of nice road frontage, and we know that is where the 
majority of the need is now. Multi family and townhomes would come later on. Our goal right 
now is to start with the single family detached. Commissioner Grant asked if any executive style 
homes would be there, 3,000 or more feet? Do you have plans for that?  I know you are not 
prepared to speak about a plan right now, but is that the plans? Ms. Shirley said we have plans to 
put the larger lots, like the executive style houses on the site, yes sir.  



 
Commissioner Walley asks up to six houses per acre? Ms. Shirley said at the very maximum. What 
that means is that we cannot build over that. And most likely the actual number will come down.  
 
Commissioner Howell asks the majority of the property where the single homes are going to be 
built, is zoned R2 now. Ms. Shirley said yes sir. Commissioner Howell asks staff what can they 
build now with water and sewer on R2, it has to be two acres? Director Levister said correct. Ms. 
Shirley said in the R2 zoning it actually specifies that an R2 zoning is only applied to areas where 
water and sewer is not available. So, because water and sewer is available at the site it actually 
helps justify smaller and flexible lot sizes.  
 
Chairman Raines states it looks like your drawing shows two entrances and exits. Is that correct? 
Ms. Shirley said we have got more. Actually, we will have two for the smaller little parts and the 
third is the main thoroughfare along Edgeland. And then there will be an entrance, at least one 
entrance for the apartments and townhomes. I apologize, the are actually two on Ernandez Road. 
Chairman Raines asked if that was discussed with the Fire Department about emergency access, 
more than one exit? Ms. Shirley said as part of this we will have to do a TIA. And in that TIA we 
will have to deal with Chester County Fire and Police and SCDOT. SCDOT has preliminary seen 
this plan. They actually told me I could eliminate an entrance if I wanted to, but I kept it on for 
now. Chairman Raines said they estimate the road can handle the traffic. Ms. Shirley said yes, 
absolutely yes. What we will do as part of this is, most likely what will happen as part of the traffic 
impact analysis is, we will need to install left and right turn lanes. And it will take a look at all the 
intersections around that we are affecting as part of the neighborhood, and if there are any off-site 
improvements we would be required to install or pay for this as well. Chairman Raines says that 
would be paid for by you, the developer? Ms. Shirley said yes.  
 
Commissioner Howell said, my other question, and it will be my last, the trash situation there. You 
are right there at the recycle center, it is pretty much maxed out at this time. Do y’all plan to 
contribute to the county to get improvements there for this many homes? Ms. Shirley said we have 
not had any discussions about it. Normally what we do with our neighborhoods is provide a private 
trash pickup. We would definitely work that out as part of the development. Commissioner Howell 
said so the homeowner association will have a trash service? Ms. Shirley said usually, yes sir.  
 
Vice Chairman Smith asked a question about the roads. On 901, I actually drove down there today, 
there are two developments that have already broke ground. Of course, everybody knows how it 
has been raining every day, there is silt just going down the road. Who is responsible for fixing 
that and cleaning it up? Ms. Shirley said that would be part of the erosion and sediment control 
plan.  That is responsibility of the contractor on site to make sure that all the measures are in place 
like the fencing to make sure the silt does not fall on the road. And then if there is a violation, an 
inspector would come out from DHEC to take care of that. They usually have inspectors so if there 
is something that is not working properly, it would be the contractor’s responsibility to clean up. 
Vice Chairman Smith said that is good. It is just a concern for me because I see it a lot. I am not 
saying that some one is not doing their job.  I hate to see silt going down the road. That road. Farm 
road. Ms. Shirley said well usually those things are very heavily regulated. They would get fines 
if they were not. Hopefully, someone will come out and check on that, and get it fixed soon.  
 



Chairman Raines asked if anyone had any further questions. There were none.  
 
Chairman Raines asked if any member of the public wished to speak in favor of this request. There 
were none.  
 
Chairman Raines said I have a list of ten or twelve people or so that are all opposed to it. I’m going 
to exercise the authority to not let everyone speak because we will be here all night typically 
hearing the same thing, so. I’m going to give you fifteen minutes and appointment five speakers 
and I am going to give you three minutes each to present your issues and everything. If you could 
get a spokesperson.  
 
A member of the audience spoke up and said you just gave her twenty-five minutes to thirty and 
we can’t all speak.  You are not going to let us all speak. Chairman Raines said as far as I am 
concerned, that was input of what is going on. She was just presenting the case. This is public 
comment. I am allowing public comment. My bylaws allow me to restrict it in a case like this and 
that is what I intend to do. That is almost one speaker for every two that applied.  
 
Off record – giving citizens time to gather speakers for fifteen minutes.  
 
Chairman Raines asked for the first speaker to step to the podium and state your name and address 
for the record. 
 
Jeff Harris of 4354 Simpson Road, Edgemoor stepped to the podium. My wife and I own Puddle 
Moon Farm. Our farm is directly across Fishing Creek from the proposed development. We 
understand Chester County is growing. That is a good thing provided the growth is fair, just and 
equitable for all stakeholders concerned. We want to ensure the community retains the beauty and 
quality of life that has made it attractive to so many of us. We strongly oppose the rezoning of the 
development for three good reasons. Number one, Chester County is already addressing the need 
for more affordable housing. We all know that. There are 225 apartments at LGI and Lando is 
going to do another 305. So, that is already being taken care of. Services for wastewater treatment, 
police, fire and emergency medical service, water and schools would be mitigated. These two 
developments alone will mean an additional 1,000 to 1,200 vehicles congesting our road. This 
project once built out would add 5,500 estimated more vehicles. According to Mr. Phillip 
Thompson King, the director of Chester’s Wastewater Recovery on Fishing Creek, he had not 
heard of the 2,000 homes fourteen days ago. This was new. Mr. King told me that if this 
development is built out, it will use up all the capacity he has. He also told me they have expanded 
for the last twenty years three times and has no more capacity for expansion. He said he is 
landlocked. So, this would take up all the sewage capacity available on that line. The zoning 
ordinance code 4-131 requires a descriptive statement. That descriptive statement has thirteen 
requirements. Number eleven says the design standards, procedures and methods demonstrating 
that this development result in an integrated use district, functional and compatible with the area. 
We do not believe this project is compatible with our community. Maybe her vision. It is our 
nightmare. In light of these specific issues, the need for further discussion and study, we 
respectfully request this property not be rezoned at this time until each item is carefully considered 
in a mutually agreeable path forward can be determined. Thank you. 
 



Robert Dodson of 3631 Ernandez Road stepped to the podium. My family’s property is about 500 
feet removed from one corner of the proposed development at the intersection of Ernandez and 
901. I grew up in four homes all within two miles of this proposed development. The area in 
question, I grew up on Wyllie’s Mill, on Highway 9. 901, and on Ernandez Road. I am a deacon 
at Union ARP Church. I am proud to say I have been a member of this community for thirty one 
of my thirty-three years. God willing, I would like to be a part of this community for the next fifty. 
I am standing in opposition to this rezoning request. I think others are going to cover some other 
points on negative impacts, traffic environment and what not. I would like to talk a bit about an 
agreement with the community. This commission unanimously recommended, and the Chester 
County Council approved in 2017 the Gateway District Master Plan. It is not gospel.  I have got 
some problems with it. No one gets all that they want. But it is a compromise and agreement with 
the community for how this area should be developed, how it should grow. Both plots in question 
for this proposed development are largely designated as rural living. There is a small top corner, 
the top North corner of that is designated as mixed use. But almost all of this is shown as rural 
living. No reasonable person would count this as rural living. The tightest any rural living allows 
is one-acre minimum lot size. Even if this space were all mixed use, this proposal does not match 
the intent of mixed use in the Master Plan. It is just high density residential. Mixed use is supposed 
to have some commercial, retail spaces blended together into a plan. This is just packing people in 
as high density residential. And even then, if this were all designated as mixed use, and that was 
met, it does not as Jeff mentioned, match and blend in with surrounding rural areas. That is 
something that is also brought up in the Gateway Master Plan as one of the design standards and 
requirements for mixed use developments.  Its that they are supposed to blend into the surrounding 
communities. A tree hedge around the edge of a property does not count as blending in with the 
farmland around us. Approval of this rezoning and development would be a breach of an 
agreement, and a breach of trust with the community as expressed in the Gateway Master Plan on 
several points. I please request the planning commission reject this proposal on the strongest 
possible terms to county council with recommendations to hold off on further development outside 
of the master plan unless there is an additional detailed investigation that happens over months 
with all sorts of community stake holders come up with this plan. Thank you.   
 
Chase Catledge of 1047 Four Boys Alley stepped to the podium. I am a pastor of Trinity Baptist 
Church in Great Falls. I live off Ernandez Road where the development is planning on being. I am 
opposed to it. I want y’all to understand, I am not opposed to growth. I think a lot of us are not 
opposed to growth. For me as a pastor, growth is a good thing because I can reach people with the 
gospel and that is the goal. For two reasons that I am opposed to this is one, the schools. Right 
now, our schools are overcrowded. My son goes to the middle school in Lewisville, and they have 
some of the elementary school kids there. Fifth graders, because it is so overcrowded. Another 
reason is safety. I believe it is a big safety issue. I know as a parent to a middle schooler, when we 
go to pick up our kids, the line is so long we are out in the main road. The reason for that you 
know, it goes back again to overcrowding of the schools. What the school has done to adjust that, 
is they allowed the younger kids from the elementary schools to dismiss early. Because it is a huge 
safety issue there. Also, when you look at Ernandez Road, there is no way that it is able to hold 
the traffic that is coming. There is absolutely no way. There was a Fire Fighter that was going to 
speak that is not able to tonight. He was going to, I am sure, stress the importance in how this is 
going to affect them, volunteers. So that is a safety concern. I talk to a lot of old timers and they 
told me years ago before my time there was Lando Landfill that is near where the development is, 



if not right on it. It is close, but it goes way back in there and y’all may be familiar with this. They 
dumped everything back there.  Batteries, transformers, oil, cars. It was massive. Talking to several 
of the folks, they only thing that they know has been removed from there was a couple 
transformers. Everything else is still there. So, I am not sure how that would be a safe thing to 
build around. For those two reasons is the reasons I am opposed to this. The schools and safety.  
So, I just do not think it is a wise decision. I hope y’all would use some wisdom on this and make 
the right decisions. I would recommend moving it somewhere else at a later date when we are able 
to support this kind of growth. Thank y’all.  
 
Joss Moss of 3559 Ernandez road stepped to the podium. My family, we own the property directly 
to the east side of the project. We have three houses on about 230 acres. My wife and I live in one, 
my brother and his family in one and my Mom in the third. It is a cattle and hay farm. So, I want 
to say my family and I are not in favor of this proposal. Little background, before moving to 
Richburg about eleven or twelve years ago we lived in Mecklenburg County in Steel Creek near 
Carowinds on the old family farm there. My family had been there for about 150 years. When we 
got married back in 1989, we fully expected to stay there, forever. Soon though, development 
started coming into the community. Ironically, it was development very similar to what we see 
proposed here tonight. Apartments, townhomes, houses on very small lots. Very dense 
subdivisions. From there it did not take long to see where the community was heading. What had 
once been a very pleasant suburban rural community, a whole lot like Richburg is now, was turning 
into an environment that we did not want to raise our children in. Our house was broken into a 
couple times. Cars vandalized. Traffic became overwhelming, so we eventually made a difficult 
decision to leave. In that relocation process, we looked at property all over. We looked at Chester 
county, Lancaster, Union, York. Even down at Fairfield county. Finally, we found what we were 
looking for in Richburg. Now it is true that Winchester would be a substantial financial investment 
in Chester county. But I think there are investments to have value other than financial. When we 
decided to make Richburg home, we were also making a big investment. As with a lot of other 
people you see here tonight have done the same thing. We have made investments of time, family, 
community, stewardship of the land, our mental quality lifestyle on and on. I believe that intangible 
investments like these add a lot of value to Chester county as well. These are the kind of 
investments that create the environment that make people want to be a part of it, not just pass 
through it. So, I hope you all do not overlook that type of value tonight. So, I understand like some 
other folks have said, I understand that growth is coming. And I will even agree that growth can 
be beneficial. But I urge you to consider the quality of the development. The decision you make 
here tonight could set the time for Richburg, Lando, Edgemoor for the next twenty, thirty years. 
Think about not just the immediate impact, but what this area will be like in the future. Make the 
decision tonight that you will be proud of when you drive down 901 twenty years from now will 
you be able to say that you are proud to have had an influence of what you see down there. To 
summarize, I believe the proposed is too dense. To much. To quick. If you want to see how this 
type of development plays out, I will be glad to take you on a tour of Steel Creek where we use to 
live. Or you can go up on 160 and drive down that about 4:30 one afternoon at Fort Mill. So, I am 
an engineer by profession, I did not have time to talk about other serious concerns I have about 
infrastructure, environmental impact, and the failure of the project to adhere to the Gateway Master 
Plan. I think other folks have spoke to that. But I do appreciate your time and attention. Thank 
you.  



Barry Dodson of 3631 Ernandez Road stepped to the podium. We love Ernandez Road. It was 
always a dream of my wife to have a farm out there, where we go from rental homes. We are a 
diverse community. We have a family farm. I actually bought my piece of land from John Reid 
who has the limited commercial track up on 901. The deer population on our track is huge. It is 
being driven to us by Lennar and the development down toward Highway 9. Those sights have 
been around for two years, and not the first two by four has been erected. You have a lot of homes 
there that are planned but nothing has been done. Yes, we have COVID. We have had rain. People 
are building all over the county but not there. Is there demand? We have been hearing about it for 
twenty years. One of the Graham brothers bought that land on 901 South. Was going to be another 
Sun City. It is a waste land. Let’s let Lennar build out. And let the development on 901 build out 
and see if the demand is actually there. There is not a demand for 2,500 homes on Ernandez Road. 
And besides that, Ernandez Road is dangerous. You come out on 901 from Ernandez there is a 
five second blind spot there. You cannot get out. They are not going to put a traffic signal there. 
There is not one at Highway 9 and 901. Try to exit on 223, it is a logging road. Blind curves both 
directions. And the logging trucks, Adeline Shephard, a member of our church got killed by a 
logging truck and she is Shepherd Will. The traffic is horrendous. It can not be fixed with this plan. 
So, what do you want to do? Let me send 2,000 cars by your house every morning at 7:00. They 
are going to be coming down Ernandez Road. And trying to get to Lewisville schools on 223. This 
is a nightmare, and it is going to end up killing a kid. So, what can I say? We love this area. We 
have invested thirty years of our life in our little family farm. We are so happy to have the Moss’. 
We are so happy to be around the Reids’. We are happy to go by and see David Love and his 
extended family.  These are not rich people. We are not rich people. But we can not handle 2,500 
homes on Ernandez Road. It is just now getting improved after twenty years of begging and that 
has not started yet either. Guys, I have been engineering the Carolinas, registered, for forty years. 
I know Bailey Patrick. I know Jim Mierfield. I have had dealings with them. This sounds great. 
But it is not the right place. It is not the right time. Please take your time. Please do not approve 
this. It is horrendous. Look at it. It is horrendous. Thank you. 
 
Chairman Raines said that closes the public comment portion of the meeting. We have heard a lot 
of passion on the con side. I think we had a good presentation of what the overall plan is and the 
timeframe and everything. He asked if anyone had any comments or a motion.  
 
Commissioner Grant had a question for staff. What was the last development that we approved 
that County Council turned down? Director Levister said the last PD that got turned down was the 
development behind Victorian Hills. But now it is a special exception for a cluster development.  
 
Chairman Raines said the portions that is already Limited Commercial, they can build on it as it 
is, correct? Director Levister said Tax Map number 123-00-00-052-00 is already current zoning of 
Limited Commercial and it will allow residential living on that zoning. Chairman Raines asked 
including their plans? Director Levister said I would have to check and make sure everything that 
is in that plan meets that requirements. Chairman Raines said pending approval of the plat. Director 
Levister said correct.  Chairman Raines said I just wanted to make that clear that part of it already 
meets the requirements.  
 



Commissioner Howell said the way I understand it, the part that meets it is the apartments and the 
townhomes. Correct? Chairman Raines said yes. Commissioner Howell said so basically once you 
meet the obligations that the county set before you could build.  
 
Vice Chairman Smith said one of the comments mentioned, Highway 160 in Fort Mill, Indian 
Land and I am trying to think long term development. When you look at somewhere like Indian 
Land, SC where you go further north to Indian Trial NC, there is a lot of developments and plan 
developments of this size and this density. Yeah, they bring short term revenue to the county, 
which we need. And we do need homes. But the long-term negative side effects that do not add 
physical value. And also, they do have physical value, but when it comes to things down the road 
the county is going to have to deal with. The state is going to have to deal with it. There is a price 
tag involved with that too.  
 
Chairman Raines said I agree it is a lot bigger than you would maybe want to see. But you know, 
in my opinion, I do not think the government entities and Highway Department and all of those 
people are going to go and build enough sewer capacity to take care of something like that. They 
are not going to four lane the road in anticipation of that happening. Then there are always schools. 
They are always behind the curve. We can’t even agree to replace a sixty-year-old school. Money 
has got to be spent at some point.  Impact fees, I do not know what will happen with that discussion, 
you know as a method of paying for some of this.  It could fill some of that gap. But overall, it is 
just a huge growing pain because you are taking an area and converting it into something that it 
has never been set up to be. Yes, it is going to look much like the areas you talked about, Indian 
Trail, Indian Land, if that happens but you know it is by and large, not in my yard, but the people 
most effective are the people most in that area. The rest of Chester County could get a good bit out 
of this, potentially. At some point you have to do some things like this if you are going to have 
places to eat and movie theaters and things of that nature. If people are not here, you do not get the 
rest of it.  So, in my mind, the light of it is at what point does Chester County stop prohibiting stuff 
like this and start down that road of growing. And by and large the question here is how much is 
too big to start with. Otherwise, if you are going to grow any, you have got to start down this road. 
You got to take the first step.  
 
Vice Chairman Smith said I agree with some of what you said but for example in Fort Mill off of 
160, all that growth and development, the long term after effect. If you look at the school service. 
They are in the red big time. The county is paying for that. I mean, everyone is paying for it. 
Chairman Raines said we have the statistics from some of our training sessions that your money 
comes from industry and things of that nature, and houses. But you have got to have people. It is 
a double edge sword.  
 
Commissioner Howell said the impact that this will cause on the road there, 901 right now is in 
bad shape and needs to be reworked. I drive it. To handle the magnitude of the vehicles that are 
going to come out of here going to the interstate or going north toward Rock Hill, the bridge is 
basically a white line to white line bridge up to Fishing Creek, you have a major traffic impact that 
this would cause even at half the density. Chairman Raines said keep in mind you are talking a 
longer term build out. Commissioner Howell said this is true and we already have two 
developments on 901 that have potential for being this big or bigger than this.  
 



Commissioner Walley said if you go back and count the Lando purposed originally years ago for 
it, that would be three developments. Commissioner Howell said correct. Commissioner Walley 
then said and then if you count the apartments that are supposed to be on Edgeland Road in the old 
Ms. Jennings house, there are supposed to be apartments there. That would be four developments 
off of 901 already before this one. Commissioner Howell said and the houses behind the Gateway. 
Commissioner Walley said that is not counting Highway 9 development. Cherry Hills, or any of 
those others. Vice Chairman Smith said they are out there building all over the county, without the 
rezoning from R2. Houses are springing up. Commissioner Howell said there have been nine built 
above my house in the past year.  
 
Commissioner Grant said I have one question for Winchester. Have y’all done any developments 
anywhere else close by? Ms. Shirley said I have a list actually. We have done developments all 
through Lancaster, York, Union County, so all surrounding. Some of our existing communities 
that we gave as examples actually for people to go see. We have got Prestwick in Fort Mill. 
Pikeview which is also in Fort Mill. Edgewater which is in Lancaster. Austen Lakes in York. 
Roddey Park in Rock Hill. And then over in Monroe we have got Creeks Landing, Greenbrier. 
Wyntree in Midland. Huntley Glen in Pineville. And Stonebridge in Mineral Springs.  
 
Chairman Raines ask what is the minimum density you can economically stand? Ms. Shirley said 
it is really an economy of scale. The more homes, especially in terms of what offsite improvements 
get built and added on to. When you think about the smaller communities, they do not have as 
much as a financial impact on things like roadway improvements. But with a development of this 
size, we would actually be required to provide off site roadway improvements. So, improving 
Edgeland Road, improving Ernandez Road those would be our responsibility to take care of. 
Chairman Raines said your responsibility, not the state. Ms. Shirley said correct. Chairman Raines 
asked at what point?  Ms. Shirley said the traffic impact analysis is a report that gets generated. 
SCDOT who owns the roads, they take a look at both of the roads and the intersection and they 
said you are going to impact it to this certain point so you will need to improve the roads. Providing 
left and right turn lanes, which will automatically come with an overlay or rebuild of the road. So, 
there are improvements that, when you have a larger development, they can absorb those cost, and 
they can actually put more revenue back into the community. Chairman Raines said so you would 
actually widen the road all the way to Number 9? Ms. Shirley said if SCDOT comes back and said 
this is what you need to do, we would be required to do it as part of the development. Chairman 
Raines ask even five years after the fact? Ms. Shirley said yes, most of the time those 
improvements have to be bonded. And they have to be done before a certain number of building 
permits are issued for the site.  
 
Chairman Raines then asked what is the density comparatively speaking to the other properties 
you compare? Ms. Shirley said they are pretty comparable. Most single-family developments these 
days are about four units to the acre. I’ll come prepared to the board to address what the single-
family density is verses the apartments and townhomes.  Chairman Raines said that makes a 
difference. Ms. Shirley said townhomes and multi family are always going to be higher than single 
family just for virtue of more units to the acre.  
 



Chairman Raines asked if anyone had any further questions or comments. We need a motion to 
work from. Commissioner Grant make a motion to approve the rezoning request as presented; 
seconded by Commissioner Hill.  
 
Chairman Raines asked staff when we come back and do a preliminary plat, we can limit that 
density? Director Levister said you can make the changes when it is presented to y’all. That’s what 
they are presenting to the county for the planned development then the Planning Commission can 
ask to make the changes and then they will have to make the changes and represent it. Chairman 
Raines ask then at that point we could meet the minimum requirements of the zoning classification 
or choose to go denser. Director Levister said whatever the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation is to the applicant.  
 
Commissioner Howell said so if it was approved, and got back to us again, we could limit them to 
two houses per acre? Director Levister said that is y’all’s decision as a board. The only thing we 
are doing tonight is approving the rezoning. And then they have to present the county with a sketch 
plan to make sure all the requirements are on there and then they will have to pay to come to the 
board again to the Planning Commission to present their preliminary plat of the development. At 
that time, y’all can make whatever changes you want to recommend.  
 
Vice Chairman Smith had one last comment, I know she mentioned some other communities we 
could visit that were similar and if you look at all those areas, they all have one thing in common. 
A lot of people would say that they were not planned well. It is not just them. There are a bunch 
of big developments on top of each other that have got negative long-term effects. Commissioner 
Howell said I will say that I have been in these developments. I have worked in them in my job. I 
will be honest with you, sometimes my truck and trailer were longer than the lot was wide. And 
sometimes it was longer than it was deep. Chairman Raines said from a density standpoint it is 
tight. Commissioner Howell then said there was a comment here about highway 160. If you ever 
go to Lowes over there, it takes you four and five lights to get out at the most. That is in the middle 
of the day. It is terrible in the afternoon. Nonpeak traffic time. Commissioner Walley said and that 
is a four-lane highway.  
Commissioner Howell said I understand that we need houses. I don’t know if we need this many 
at this time, in my opinion. Chairman Raines said the apartment portion of it potentially really 
increases your density, in that required as far as having enough or a whole lot more people in a 
whole lot smaller area. Even if you busted it up and made the houses on a lot bigger parcel. 
Commissioner Howell said you are looking at, just figure on 2,400 times three for kids going to 
school. Commissioner Walley said and that is not counting the other developments. Chairman 
Raines said the other developments already in the area. Commissioner Walley said on the same 
highway. Edgeland Road.  Mountain Gap Road whatever you want to call it. Commissioner 
Howell said I mean it is going to be a burden for the county and the taxpayers to keep the support 
of the facilities they have. The elementary school is overcrowded. The junior high is overcrowded. 
The high school is overcrowded. And they are not even considering rebuilding at this time. 
Commissioner Walley then said one thing we have not touched on is the landfill. Is our county 
going to be able to hold all this building at the landfill? All the trash that will be coming from all 
these four housing developments being done on one highway. That is a lot. Chairman Raines said 
obviously the answer to that is we need good planning at the county level to foresee that kind of 
stuff and plan things, have things in place so that it can become a better situation to match growth 



as it goes along because you are never going to get ahead of the curve. You are not going to start 
ahead of the curve.  
 
Commissioner Grant said I will say one thing. If it is approved, it is going to force the county to 
do something. Chairman Raines said yes. Commissioner Grant said they will have to do something. 
They talk about these impact fees and ain’t done nothing yet that I know of.  
 
Vice Chairman Smith said we have great examples of what not to do right beside us. I think there 
is a way we can all win in this situation. We can provide the houses, which the county really needs. 
We can provide the revenue for the county, the developer, the landowner. We do not have to be 
like Indian Land and Indian Trial. Chester can do something different and still win. Chairman 
Raines said to a certain extent. You are never going to go back to the days when houses were built 
here in the 60’s and 70’s and it was a fifty-neighborhood housing development on three acres of 
land. Everything is too pricy for that. The economy of scale is…. you are never going to get that. 
Other than very small, limited quantities. So, then you are reduced to buying an acre of property, 
or three acres here or there and building a house. Getting it rezoned. Having enough property to 
build a house in R2 restrictions. The question to me is can you start this big or do you need to come 
somewhere in the middle. Obviously, you have got to go somewhere to start down that road. This 
is pretty large for the first step. If we approve this, then when it comes back, we could say no. not 
six houses per acre. We could say two. If you thought that was more reasonable then you have a 
decision tonight to make to approve it and go down that road.  
 
Commissioner Howell said there are some wetlands on the property here. Does that include that 
in the average, and you would still have dense housing is that correct? You have what, about 100 
acres of wet land? Ms. Shirley said yes, how density is calculated is by the gross property acreage 
by the number of homes. So, yes. Chairman Raines said overall number of acres not usable acres, 
buildable acres. Ms. Shirley said yes because you start getting into very subjective definitions of 
what… that is called net density. And that is usually used to determine how much open space is 
then provided as part of that. So, usually what happens is the traditional way the density is 
calculated is with a gross acreage and then you provide open space commitments as part of that. 
Commissioner Howell said even though we would limit the number of houses per acre to say two, 
if you got one hundred acres it is unbuildable. How much does that put on the other two hundred 
acres that are buildable. That is the question that I cannot answer.  
 
Vice Chairman Smith said are you asking about the density of the actual buildable minus the 
wetlands and places you can not build? Commissioner Howell said yes, we do not have that 
answer.  
 
Commissioner Grant said call for the question Mr. Chairman. We are beating a dead horse to death 
here.  
 
Chairman Raines said we have a motion on the table to approve the rezoning as it has been 
presented. We also have a second. No further discussion. Vote was 3-4 to approve. Motion fails. 
(Chairman Raines, Commissioner Grant and Commissioner Hill approved. Vice Chairman Smith, 
Commissioner Walley, Commissioner Williams and Commissioner Howell opposed)  
  



To: Chester County Council 

From: Chester Land Holdings LLC 

Date: May 12, 2021 

 

RE: Winchester neighborhood commitments and concessions 

 

As part of the rezoning application, the development team commits to: 

• Building a high-quality residential community to include 1,150 single-family detached dwellings and 

their associated accessory uses. 

Minimum lot size: 2,700 SF 

Minimum lot width: 30' 

Minimum yards 

Front: 20' 

Side: 5' 

Rear: 20' 

Maximum structure height: 35 feet when permitted by fire regulations 

Accessory structures shall be consistent with the principal building in material, texture, and 

color 

• Providing access locations to the site subject to review and approval by SCDOT and/or Chester 

County. 

• Providing internal public streets designed, constructed and maintained to SCDOT standards. Public 

streets will be owned by SCDOT. 

• Providing a Traffic Impact Analysis prior to site plan approval. Requirements placed on the site by 

SCDOT and County review will be incorporated as necessary. 

• Meeting parking requirements as per Chester County's Zoning Ordinance Chapter 5, Art. IV Parking 

• Complying with applicable local and State standards for environmental impacts, avoidance and/or 

buffering. All local and state regulations regarding erosion and sediment control and stormwater 

management will be designed and incorporated into the site plan at time of site plan submittal.  

• Depicting a conceptual landscaping plan showing proposed landscaping, perimeter buffering and/or 

existing tree cover. All local regulations regarding required landscaping will be followed. 

• Providing amenities, amenity areas and open spaces as conceptually shown on the Conceptual 

Rezoning Plan that will be owned and maintained by an HOA. Amenities may include but are not 

limited to: Clubhouse and pool, pocket parks throughout the neighborhood, seating areas, 

landscaped areas, playgrounds, open multi-purpose lawn spaces, dog park, trails.  

• Screening as shown conceptually on the rezoning plan to meet the standards as set forth in Chester 

County's Zoning Ordinance Chapter 5, Art. III Landscaping 

• Providing signs to meet the standards set forth in Chester County's Zoning Ordinance Chapter 5, Art. 

V Signs 

• Providing the architectural character associated with the building(s) to be located on the site as 

generally depicted in the Vision Book are included to reflect the architectural style and quality of the 

building(s) that will be constructed.  



• Committing to acceptable facade materials may be: masonry materials such as brick, hard stucco, 

stone or tile materials. Cementitious (panel, siding, trim & battens), (e.i.f.s), and vinyl. New materials 

to the market proposed for exterior use are acceptable pending compliance with the architectural 

character. 

• Phasing the development of the neighborhood. 

• Dedicating 2± acres of land along Edgeland Road, location to be coordinated with County personnel 

for use by Fire, EMS and Sheriff departments. 

• Committing to Street widths will be sufficient to allow fire apparatus to travel with on street 

parking. 

• Providing hydrants will be provided within 500 feet of any structure and no more than 800 feet 

apart. 

• Providing hydrants will be provided with Stortz connections. 

• Providing minimum side setbacks are 5-feet, Developer will ensure 1500 GPM flow is provided for 

the water system serving the property. System will be improved as necessary to ensure the required 

flow. This requirement could be reduced if spacing between homes is greater. 

 

In response to City Council requests, we have specifically:  

• Reduced Single family homes from 1,500 to 1,150 

• Increased side yard setbacks 

• Committed to Fire department request for 2+/- acres of land along Edgeland Road 

• Committed to design/updgrade the water system servicing the neighborhood to meet the 

1,500 gallons per minute water flow to site requirement 

• Met other Fire department requests to provide hydrants and desired internal street widths. 

• Worked with Chester County Wastewater Recovery to secure sewer capacity assurance in 

approved unit increments 

 

We are currently reaching out to Council to address any further requests, questions and concerns to 

meet Chester County’s needs.  





 

 

 
 

April 14, 2021 
 
Sara Shirley 
American Engineering 
8008 Corporate Center Drive, Suite 110 
Charlotte, NC 28226 
P: 704-375-2438 
E: sshirley@american-ea.com 
[Sent via email] 
 
Reference: Winchester – Chester County, SC 
 
Subject:  Transportation Engineering Services Agreement 
 
Dear Ms. Shirley: 
 
Ramey Kemp & Associates Inc. (RKA) is pleased to provide you with this Transportation Engineering Services 
Agreement for the above referenced project. We understand this development is located east of Edgeland Road, and north 
of J. S. Gaston Road in Chester County, South Carolina. It is our understanding the South Carolina Department of 
Transportation (SCDOT) and/or Chester County (County) will require a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the proposed 
project. The following is our proposed scope of services for the Project. The parties acknowledge that the scope of services 
may change following consultation or coordination with governmental agencies. The parties agree that should the scope 
of services change following any such consultation or coordination, RKA will provide the Client with a revised proposal 
or an addendum to this agreement setting forth any such changes and associated costs to be paid by the Client. 
 
 

I.) SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
  

A.) Traffic Engineering:  
 

a. Coordinate with Client to establish a thorough understanding of the project as well as to obtain all 
available information. 

 
b. Coordinate with SCDOT and/or the County to discuss the project, obtain information, and finalize scope. 

This proposal assumes a maximum of one (1) virtual meeting [conference call or video teleconference] 
may be needed for scoping purposes.  
 

c. This proposal assumes up to eight (8) intersections will be considered for analysis. The study 
intersections included in this proposal consist of: 

1. Lancaster Highway and I-85 Southbound Ramps 
2. Lancaster Highway and I-85 Northbound Ramps 
3. Lancaster Highway and Edgeland Road 
4. Lancaster Highway and Wylies Mill Road 
5. Lancaster Highway and Main Street 
6. Edgeland Road and Westbrook Road 
7. Edgeland Road and Lando Road / Access A 
8. Edgeland Road and Access B 
 



 | 2 
 

  

d. Turning movement counts at intersections 1 through 5 will be completed during the AM and PM peak 
hours (7:00-9:00 AM and 4:00-6:00 PM). A 14-hour turn movement count will be conducted at the 
intersection of Lancaster Highway and Edgeland Road (6:00 AM – 8:00 PM). 

 
e. Utilizing trip generation formulas in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation 

Manual, 10th Edition, calculate the amount of weekday daily, weekday AM peak hour, and weekday PM 
peak hour traffic to be generated by the proposed development upon full build out.  
 

f. Determine site trip distribution percentages based on surrounding population densities, existing traffic 
patterns, the previously approved Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for nearby sites, and engineering 
judgment.  Assign site-generated traffic to study intersections utilizing trip distribution percentages.  

 
g. Project existing traffic volumes to the build-out year using a compounded growth rate typically approved 

by SCDOT and/or the County. Combine the background traffic with the site traffic to determine the 
future traffic conditions that can be expected upon build-out of the site. The background traffic will 
include any approved adjacent developments.  This proposal assumes the traffic from any approved 
adjacent development will be provided by the reviewing agencies.  

 
h. Analyze study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for the following scenarios: 

1. 2021 Existing 
2. Future No-Build (Full Build Year) Traffic 
3. Future Full Build (Full Build Year) Traffic 

 
i. Conduct a signal warrant analysis for the intersection of Lancaster Highway and Edgeland Road. Signal 

Warrants 1, 2, and 3 from the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) will be analyzed. 
 

j. Prepare a Traffic Impact Analysis documenting the study findings with graphical aides and an appendix 
of supporting data. Provide a draft copy to the Client for review. Upon approval, submit necessary copies 
of the report to SCDOT (if required) and local reviewing agencies for their review and comments. 
 

k. Coordinate with the Client to ensure an understanding of the study and answer questions via  
virtual meeting [conference call or video teleconference].  
 

l. Coordinate with SCDOT (if required) and local reviewing agencies (via telephone or written 
correspondence) to ensure an understanding of the study and answer questions. It is difficult to estimate 
the extent of comments to be provided by SCDOT and/or the local review agency regarding the review. 
Should revised analyses or any other additional effort beyond written clarifications be required to 
address comments or provide additional information to the agencies, a supplemental proposal will be 
provided. 

 
m. Any meetings requested by the Client for RKA to attend will be billed on an hourly + expenses basis. 

 



 | 3 
 

  

B.) Additional Services: 
Additional (extra) services are defined as any work item not included in the above scope of services that are 
requested by the client or review agencies. Additional services will be billable at the RKA billing rates that are 
current at the time the extra work is identified. Any meetings not included in the scope of services will be 
considered extra. Extra work will be identified either in writing or by verbal communication, if requested by the 
client, but must be approved in writing by client before proceeding to perform such additional services. 
 
Additional services RKA provides includes, but is not limited to, the following areas: 

• Driveway permits and encroachment agreements 

• Roadway design 
o Intersection Improvement Design 
o Highway and Interchange Design 
o Roundabout Design 
o Sidewalk Design  
o Cost estimations 

• Traffic signal design and timing plans 

• Signing and pavement marking plans 

• Hydraulic Design 
 
II.) SUMMARY OF FEES: 
RKA will provide the above noted services based on the following fee(s). 

Service(s) Lump Sum or Hourly+Expenses FEE 

A.) Traffic Engineering Lump Sum $15,000.00 

 
a.) Fee is valid for 30 days from the date of this agreement. 
b.) RKA’s hourly rates/expenses are subject to change and RKA reserves the right to make modifications.  
c.) A schedule of Hourly Rate and Reimbursable Expenses can be provided upon request.  
 

III.) DEPOSIT: 
Client will be required to pay to RKA up to fifty percent (50%) of the fee identified in the proposal before RKA commences 
any services or work pursuant to this Agreement. RKA will submit invoices to client as provided herein as the services are 
performed. RKA will hold the client’s deposit and credit the amount of the deposit against RKA’s final invoice(s) for RKA’s 
services. 
 
IV.) GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
RKA General Conditions (Attachment 1) are incorporated herein by reference (see attached). The undersigned client 
represents and acknowledges that they have been provided with a copy of the General Conditions and have read and 
fully understand the General Conditions. 
 
V.) PROJECT/CLIENT INFORMATION SHEET: 
RKA Project/Client Information Sheet (Attachment 2) is incorporated herein by reference (see attached). A completed 
Project/Client Information Sheet must be returned with signed agreement. 



 | 4 
 

  

VI.) ACCEPTANCE: 
The undersigned represents and warrants that (1) he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute/deliver 
this Agreement, (2) the execution/delivery of this Agreement and the performance of the Client’s obligations hereunder 
have been duly authorized, (3) and the Agreement is a valid/legal agreement binding on the Client and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms. 
 
Accepted this _________ day of ___________________________ (month), _________ (year) 
 
 
Client Name:______________________________________ 
   (Print) 
 
By: _____________________________________________ Title: ____________________________ 
  (Sign) (Print) 
 
 
We very much appreciate you contacting us and look forward to assisting you with this project. 
 
Sincerely, 
Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc. 

 
J. Andrew Eagle, PE, PTOE 
Senior Traffic Engineering Project Manager 
 
 
Attachments: 1- RKA General Conditions  
  2- RKA Project/Client Information Sheet 
  3- RKA Deposit Invoice 
 



 | 5 
 

  

 
ATTACHMENT - 1 

Ramey Kemp & Associates General Conditions  
(As of January 1, 2016) 

1.01 Payment Procedures 
A. Invoices: Invoices are due and payable upon receipt. If Client fails to make any payment due Engineer for Services, 

extra work, or expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then (1) the amounts due Engineer will be 
increased at the rate of 1.5% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth 
day, and (2) in addition Engineer may, after giving three days written notice to Client, suspend Services under this 
Agreement until Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for Services, extra work, expenses, and other related 
charges. Client waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension. 

B. Payment: As compensation for Engineer providing or furnishing Services and extra work, Client shall pay Engineer 
as set forth herein. If Client disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then Client shall promptly advise 
Engineer in writing of the specific basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the 
undisputed portion. 
 

2.01 Termination 
A. The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated for cause: 

1. By either party upon 14 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the terminating party. Failure to pay Engineer for its 
Services shall constitute a substantial failure to perform and a basis for termination. 

2. By Engineer: 

a. upon seven days written notice if Client demands that Engineer furnish or perform services contrary to 
Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or  

b. upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s Services are delayed for more than 30 days for reasons 
beyond Engineer’s control. 

B. Engineer shall have no liability to Client on account of a termination for cause by Engineer.  
C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial failure under 

Paragraph 2.01.A.1 if the party receiving such notice begins, within three days of receipt of such notice, to correct its 
substantial failure to perform, proceeds diligently to cure such failure, and does cure such failure within no more 
than 14 days of receipt of notice; provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be 
reasonably cured within such 14-day period, and if such party has diligently attempted to cure the same and 
thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in 
no case more than, 30 days after the date of receipt of the notice. 

D. The Agreement may be terminated for convenience by Client effective upon Engineer's receipt of written notice 
from Client. 

E. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 2.01.D, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Client and to receive 
full payment for all Services and extra work performed or furnished in accordance with this Agreement, plus 
reimbursement of expenses incurred through the effective date of termination in connection with providing the 
Services and extra work, Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any, and any other reasonable costs incurred by 
Engineer as a result of such termination. 
 

3.01 General Considerations 
A. Should completion of any portion of the Services by Engineer be delayed, suspended, or impaired, through no fault 

of Engineer, then the time for completion of Engineer’s Services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s 
compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 

B. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the construction contract requirements, or any 
application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the construction contract documents other than those 
made by Engineer or its consultants. 

C. All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains all ownership 
and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, whether or not the Project 
is completed. Client shall have a limited license to use the documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and 



 | 6 
 

  

for related uses of the Client, subject to receipt by Engineer of full payment due and owing for all Services and extra 
work relating to preparation of the documents and subject to the following limitations: 
1. Client acknowledges that such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for use on the Project 

unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse by Client or others on extensions of the Project, on any other 
project, or for any other use or purpose, without written verification or adaptation by Engineer; 

2. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the documents, without written verification, completion, or 
adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at Client’s sole risk; 

3. Client shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, 
employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the documents without written verification, completion, 
or adaptation by Engineer; and such limited license to Client shall not create any rights in third parties. 

D. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Client and Engineer waive against each other, and the other’s employees, 
officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlement to 
special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to this 
Agreement or the Project. 

E. ENGINEER AND CLIENT AGREE THAT ENGINEER’S (INCLUDING ENGINEER’S OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, MEMBERS, PARTNERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES) TOTAL LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT 
AND TO ANYONE CLAIMING BY, THROUGH, OR UNDER THE CLIENT FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, 
CLAIMS, LOSSES, COSTS, DAMAGES, AND EXPENSES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS 
AGREEMENT OR THE SERVICES PERFORMED HEREUNDER, WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, 
TORT, EQUITY, STRICT LIABILITY, BY STATUTE, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO $25,000.00 OR 
ENGINEER’S TOTAL FEE FOR THE SERVICES PERFORMED HEREUNDER, WHICHEVER IS GREATER. 

F. Any disputes relating to or arising out of this Agreement or Engineer’s Services shall be subject to mandatory 
mediation, which shall be a condition precedent to any form of binding dispute resolution. The Parties shall select 
a mutually agreeable mediator for any such dispute and the Parties agree to split the mediator’s costs evenly. The 
Parties may mutually agree to waive mediation. Any disputes not resolved by mediation shall be subject to 
Arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Construction Industry Arbitration 
Rules in effect as of the date of this Agreement. 

G. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. The Parties agree that any dispute or 
other legal action relating to this Agreement, shall be conducted only in Wake County, North Carolina, unless 
otherwise agreed to by the Parties or provided by law. 

H. A party’s non-enforcement of any provision in the Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor 
shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or the remainder of this Agreement. 

 
Client Initials: _____________ 

 
 



 | 7 
 

  

 
Client Information Sheet 

Project Name: 

Client Name: 

 [ ] Person [ ] Corporation  [ ] LLC    [ ] Partnership 

 Address: 

 

 Project Contact Name: 

 Title: 

 Email: 

 Phone Number(s): 

 

Billing/Invoicing Information: 

 Billing/Invoicing Contact Name (if different): 

 Email: 

 Phone Number(s):  

 Billing/Invoicing Address: 

 

Real Property Legal Owner Name: 

(Who owns the land the project is being built on?) 

 [ ] Person [ ] Corporation  [ ] LLC    [ ] Partnership 

 Address: 

 Owner Contact Name: 

 Email: 

 Phone Number(s):  

 



































CCMA21-03: Chester Land Holdings, LLC. Request Tax Map # 123-00-00-052-000 located 
along Edgeland and Ernandez Road, Edgemoor SC, be rezoned from LC (Limited Commercial) to 
PD (Planned Development) 

Chairman Raines said with all the discussion we have had I am not going to call for any more 
questions or comments.  

Chairman Raines made a motion to disapprove this also since PD has got to be all together so 
obviously it is one for none. Commissioner Walley seconded the motion. Vote was 7-0 deny.  

 



To: Chester County Council 

From: Chester Land Holdings LLC 

Date: May 12, 2021 

 

RE: Winchester neighborhood commitments and concessions 

 

As part of the rezoning application, the development team commits to: 

• Building a high-quality residential community to include 1,150 single-family detached dwellings and 

their associated accessory uses. 

Minimum lot size: 2,700 SF 

Minimum lot width: 30' 

Minimum yards 

Front: 20' 

Side: 5' 

Rear: 20' 

Maximum structure height: 35 feet when permitted by fire regulations 

Accessory structures shall be consistent with the principal building in material, texture, and 

color 

• Providing access locations to the site subject to review and approval by SCDOT and/or Chester 

County. 

• Providing internal public streets designed, constructed and maintained to SCDOT standards. Public 

streets will be owned by SCDOT. 

• Providing a Traffic Impact Analysis prior to site plan approval. Requirements placed on the site by 

SCDOT and County review will be incorporated as necessary. 

• Meeting parking requirements as per Chester County's Zoning Ordinance Chapter 5, Art. IV Parking 

• Complying with applicable local and State standards for environmental impacts, avoidance and/or 

buffering. All local and state regulations regarding erosion and sediment control and stormwater 

management will be designed and incorporated into the site plan at time of site plan submittal.  

• Depicting a conceptual landscaping plan showing proposed landscaping, perimeter buffering and/or 

existing tree cover. All local regulations regarding required landscaping will be followed. 

• Providing amenities, amenity areas and open spaces as conceptually shown on the Conceptual 

Rezoning Plan that will be owned and maintained by an HOA. Amenities may include but are not 

limited to: Clubhouse and pool, pocket parks throughout the neighborhood, seating areas, 

landscaped areas, playgrounds, open multi-purpose lawn spaces, dog park, trails.  

• Screening as shown conceptually on the rezoning plan to meet the standards as set forth in Chester 

County's Zoning Ordinance Chapter 5, Art. III Landscaping 

• Providing signs to meet the standards set forth in Chester County's Zoning Ordinance Chapter 5, Art. 

V Signs 

• Providing the architectural character associated with the building(s) to be located on the site as 

generally depicted in the Vision Book are included to reflect the architectural style and quality of the 

building(s) that will be constructed.  



• Committing to acceptable facade materials may be: masonry materials such as brick, hard stucco, 

stone or tile materials. Cementitious (panel, siding, trim & battens), (e.i.f.s), and vinyl. New materials 

to the market proposed for exterior use are acceptable pending compliance with the architectural 

character. 

• Phasing the development of the neighborhood. 

• Dedicating 2± acres of land along Edgeland Road, location to be coordinated with County personnel 

for use by Fire, EMS and Sheriff departments. 

• Committing to Street widths will be sufficient to allow fire apparatus to travel with on street 

parking. 

• Providing hydrants will be provided within 500 feet of any structure and no more than 800 feet 

apart. 

• Providing hydrants will be provided with Stortz connections. 

• Providing minimum side setbacks are 5-feet, Developer will ensure 1500 GPM flow is provided for 

the water system serving the property. System will be improved as necessary to ensure the required 

flow. This requirement could be reduced if spacing between homes is greater. 

 

In response to City Council requests, we have specifically:  

• Reduced Single family homes from 1,500 to 1,150 

• Increased side yard setbacks 

• Committed to Fire department request for 2+/- acres of land along Edgeland Road 

• Committed to design/updgrade the water system servicing the neighborhood to meet the 

1,500 gallons per minute water flow to site requirement 

• Met other Fire department requests to provide hydrants and desired internal street widths. 

• Worked with Chester County Wastewater Recovery to secure sewer capacity assurance in 

approved unit increments 

 

We are currently reaching out to Council to address any further requests, questions and concerns to 

meet Chester County’s needs.  





 

 

 
 

April 14, 2021 
 
Sara Shirley 
American Engineering 
8008 Corporate Center Drive, Suite 110 
Charlotte, NC 28226 
P: 704-375-2438 
E: sshirley@american-ea.com 
[Sent via email] 
 
Reference: Winchester – Chester County, SC 
 
Subject:  Transportation Engineering Services Agreement 
 
Dear Ms. Shirley: 
 
Ramey Kemp & Associates Inc. (RKA) is pleased to provide you with this Transportation Engineering Services 
Agreement for the above referenced project. We understand this development is located east of Edgeland Road, and north 
of J. S. Gaston Road in Chester County, South Carolina. It is our understanding the South Carolina Department of 
Transportation (SCDOT) and/or Chester County (County) will require a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the proposed 
project. The following is our proposed scope of services for the Project. The parties acknowledge that the scope of services 
may change following consultation or coordination with governmental agencies. The parties agree that should the scope 
of services change following any such consultation or coordination, RKA will provide the Client with a revised proposal 
or an addendum to this agreement setting forth any such changes and associated costs to be paid by the Client. 
 
 

I.) SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
  

A.) Traffic Engineering:  
 

a. Coordinate with Client to establish a thorough understanding of the project as well as to obtain all 
available information. 

 
b. Coordinate with SCDOT and/or the County to discuss the project, obtain information, and finalize scope. 

This proposal assumes a maximum of one (1) virtual meeting [conference call or video teleconference] 
may be needed for scoping purposes.  
 

c. This proposal assumes up to eight (8) intersections will be considered for analysis. The study 
intersections included in this proposal consist of: 

1. Lancaster Highway and I-85 Southbound Ramps 
2. Lancaster Highway and I-85 Northbound Ramps 
3. Lancaster Highway and Edgeland Road 
4. Lancaster Highway and Wylies Mill Road 
5. Lancaster Highway and Main Street 
6. Edgeland Road and Westbrook Road 
7. Edgeland Road and Lando Road / Access A 
8. Edgeland Road and Access B 
 



 | 2 
 

  

d. Turning movement counts at intersections 1 through 5 will be completed during the AM and PM peak 
hours (7:00-9:00 AM and 4:00-6:00 PM). A 14-hour turn movement count will be conducted at the 
intersection of Lancaster Highway and Edgeland Road (6:00 AM – 8:00 PM). 

 
e. Utilizing trip generation formulas in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation 

Manual, 10th Edition, calculate the amount of weekday daily, weekday AM peak hour, and weekday PM 
peak hour traffic to be generated by the proposed development upon full build out.  
 

f. Determine site trip distribution percentages based on surrounding population densities, existing traffic 
patterns, the previously approved Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for nearby sites, and engineering 
judgment.  Assign site-generated traffic to study intersections utilizing trip distribution percentages.  

 
g. Project existing traffic volumes to the build-out year using a compounded growth rate typically approved 

by SCDOT and/or the County. Combine the background traffic with the site traffic to determine the 
future traffic conditions that can be expected upon build-out of the site. The background traffic will 
include any approved adjacent developments.  This proposal assumes the traffic from any approved 
adjacent development will be provided by the reviewing agencies.  

 
h. Analyze study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for the following scenarios: 

1. 2021 Existing 
2. Future No-Build (Full Build Year) Traffic 
3. Future Full Build (Full Build Year) Traffic 

 
i. Conduct a signal warrant analysis for the intersection of Lancaster Highway and Edgeland Road. Signal 

Warrants 1, 2, and 3 from the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) will be analyzed. 
 

j. Prepare a Traffic Impact Analysis documenting the study findings with graphical aides and an appendix 
of supporting data. Provide a draft copy to the Client for review. Upon approval, submit necessary copies 
of the report to SCDOT (if required) and local reviewing agencies for their review and comments. 
 

k. Coordinate with the Client to ensure an understanding of the study and answer questions via  
virtual meeting [conference call or video teleconference].  
 

l. Coordinate with SCDOT (if required) and local reviewing agencies (via telephone or written 
correspondence) to ensure an understanding of the study and answer questions. It is difficult to estimate 
the extent of comments to be provided by SCDOT and/or the local review agency regarding the review. 
Should revised analyses or any other additional effort beyond written clarifications be required to 
address comments or provide additional information to the agencies, a supplemental proposal will be 
provided. 

 
m. Any meetings requested by the Client for RKA to attend will be billed on an hourly + expenses basis. 

 



 | 3 
 

  

B.) Additional Services: 
Additional (extra) services are defined as any work item not included in the above scope of services that are 
requested by the client or review agencies. Additional services will be billable at the RKA billing rates that are 
current at the time the extra work is identified. Any meetings not included in the scope of services will be 
considered extra. Extra work will be identified either in writing or by verbal communication, if requested by the 
client, but must be approved in writing by client before proceeding to perform such additional services. 
 
Additional services RKA provides includes, but is not limited to, the following areas: 

• Driveway permits and encroachment agreements 

• Roadway design 
o Intersection Improvement Design 
o Highway and Interchange Design 
o Roundabout Design 
o Sidewalk Design  
o Cost estimations 

• Traffic signal design and timing plans 

• Signing and pavement marking plans 

• Hydraulic Design 
 
II.) SUMMARY OF FEES: 
RKA will provide the above noted services based on the following fee(s). 

Service(s) Lump Sum or Hourly+Expenses FEE 

A.) Traffic Engineering Lump Sum $15,000.00 

 
a.) Fee is valid for 30 days from the date of this agreement. 
b.) RKA’s hourly rates/expenses are subject to change and RKA reserves the right to make modifications.  
c.) A schedule of Hourly Rate and Reimbursable Expenses can be provided upon request.  
 

III.) DEPOSIT: 
Client will be required to pay to RKA up to fifty percent (50%) of the fee identified in the proposal before RKA commences 
any services or work pursuant to this Agreement. RKA will submit invoices to client as provided herein as the services are 
performed. RKA will hold the client’s deposit and credit the amount of the deposit against RKA’s final invoice(s) for RKA’s 
services. 
 
IV.) GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
RKA General Conditions (Attachment 1) are incorporated herein by reference (see attached). The undersigned client 
represents and acknowledges that they have been provided with a copy of the General Conditions and have read and 
fully understand the General Conditions. 
 
V.) PROJECT/CLIENT INFORMATION SHEET: 
RKA Project/Client Information Sheet (Attachment 2) is incorporated herein by reference (see attached). A completed 
Project/Client Information Sheet must be returned with signed agreement. 



 | 4 
 

  

VI.) ACCEPTANCE: 
The undersigned represents and warrants that (1) he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute/deliver 
this Agreement, (2) the execution/delivery of this Agreement and the performance of the Client’s obligations hereunder 
have been duly authorized, (3) and the Agreement is a valid/legal agreement binding on the Client and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms. 
 
Accepted this _________ day of ___________________________ (month), _________ (year) 
 
 
Client Name:______________________________________ 
   (Print) 
 
By: _____________________________________________ Title: ____________________________ 
  (Sign) (Print) 
 
 
We very much appreciate you contacting us and look forward to assisting you with this project. 
 
Sincerely, 
Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc. 

 
J. Andrew Eagle, PE, PTOE 
Senior Traffic Engineering Project Manager 
 
 
Attachments: 1- RKA General Conditions  
  2- RKA Project/Client Information Sheet 
  3- RKA Deposit Invoice 
 



 | 5 
 

  

 
ATTACHMENT - 1 

Ramey Kemp & Associates General Conditions  
(As of January 1, 2016) 

1.01 Payment Procedures 
A. Invoices: Invoices are due and payable upon receipt. If Client fails to make any payment due Engineer for Services, 

extra work, or expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then (1) the amounts due Engineer will be 
increased at the rate of 1.5% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth 
day, and (2) in addition Engineer may, after giving three days written notice to Client, suspend Services under this 
Agreement until Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for Services, extra work, expenses, and other related 
charges. Client waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension. 

B. Payment: As compensation for Engineer providing or furnishing Services and extra work, Client shall pay Engineer 
as set forth herein. If Client disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then Client shall promptly advise 
Engineer in writing of the specific basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the 
undisputed portion. 
 

2.01 Termination 
A. The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated for cause: 

1. By either party upon 14 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the terminating party. Failure to pay Engineer for its 
Services shall constitute a substantial failure to perform and a basis for termination. 

2. By Engineer: 

a. upon seven days written notice if Client demands that Engineer furnish or perform services contrary to 
Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or  

b. upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s Services are delayed for more than 30 days for reasons 
beyond Engineer’s control. 

B. Engineer shall have no liability to Client on account of a termination for cause by Engineer.  
C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial failure under 

Paragraph 2.01.A.1 if the party receiving such notice begins, within three days of receipt of such notice, to correct its 
substantial failure to perform, proceeds diligently to cure such failure, and does cure such failure within no more 
than 14 days of receipt of notice; provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be 
reasonably cured within such 14-day period, and if such party has diligently attempted to cure the same and 
thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in 
no case more than, 30 days after the date of receipt of the notice. 

D. The Agreement may be terminated for convenience by Client effective upon Engineer's receipt of written notice 
from Client. 

E. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 2.01.D, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Client and to receive 
full payment for all Services and extra work performed or furnished in accordance with this Agreement, plus 
reimbursement of expenses incurred through the effective date of termination in connection with providing the 
Services and extra work, Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any, and any other reasonable costs incurred by 
Engineer as a result of such termination. 
 

3.01 General Considerations 
A. Should completion of any portion of the Services by Engineer be delayed, suspended, or impaired, through no fault 

of Engineer, then the time for completion of Engineer’s Services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s 
compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 

B. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the construction contract requirements, or any 
application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the construction contract documents other than those 
made by Engineer or its consultants. 

C. All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains all ownership 
and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, whether or not the Project 
is completed. Client shall have a limited license to use the documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and 



 | 6 
 

  

for related uses of the Client, subject to receipt by Engineer of full payment due and owing for all Services and extra 
work relating to preparation of the documents and subject to the following limitations: 
1. Client acknowledges that such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for use on the Project 

unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse by Client or others on extensions of the Project, on any other 
project, or for any other use or purpose, without written verification or adaptation by Engineer; 

2. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the documents, without written verification, completion, or 
adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at Client’s sole risk; 

3. Client shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, 
employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the documents without written verification, completion, 
or adaptation by Engineer; and such limited license to Client shall not create any rights in third parties. 

D. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Client and Engineer waive against each other, and the other’s employees, 
officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlement to 
special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to this 
Agreement or the Project. 

E. ENGINEER AND CLIENT AGREE THAT ENGINEER’S (INCLUDING ENGINEER’S OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, MEMBERS, PARTNERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES) TOTAL LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT 
AND TO ANYONE CLAIMING BY, THROUGH, OR UNDER THE CLIENT FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, 
CLAIMS, LOSSES, COSTS, DAMAGES, AND EXPENSES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS 
AGREEMENT OR THE SERVICES PERFORMED HEREUNDER, WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, 
TORT, EQUITY, STRICT LIABILITY, BY STATUTE, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO $25,000.00 OR 
ENGINEER’S TOTAL FEE FOR THE SERVICES PERFORMED HEREUNDER, WHICHEVER IS GREATER. 

F. Any disputes relating to or arising out of this Agreement or Engineer’s Services shall be subject to mandatory 
mediation, which shall be a condition precedent to any form of binding dispute resolution. The Parties shall select 
a mutually agreeable mediator for any such dispute and the Parties agree to split the mediator’s costs evenly. The 
Parties may mutually agree to waive mediation. Any disputes not resolved by mediation shall be subject to 
Arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Construction Industry Arbitration 
Rules in effect as of the date of this Agreement. 

G. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. The Parties agree that any dispute or 
other legal action relating to this Agreement, shall be conducted only in Wake County, North Carolina, unless 
otherwise agreed to by the Parties or provided by law. 

H. A party’s non-enforcement of any provision in the Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor 
shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or the remainder of this Agreement. 

 
Client Initials: _____________ 

 
 



 | 7 
 

  

 
Client Information Sheet 

Project Name: 

Client Name: 

 [ ] Person [ ] Corporation  [ ] LLC    [ ] Partnership 

 Address: 

 

 Project Contact Name: 

 Title: 

 Email: 

 Phone Number(s): 

 

Billing/Invoicing Information: 

 Billing/Invoicing Contact Name (if different): 

 Email: 

 Phone Number(s):  

 Billing/Invoicing Address: 

 

Real Property Legal Owner Name: 

(Who owns the land the project is being built on?) 

 [ ] Person [ ] Corporation  [ ] LLC    [ ] Partnership 

 Address: 

 Owner Contact Name: 

 Email: 

 Phone Number(s):  

 





























































VILLAGE DRIVE
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT



DEVELOPER:

ENGINEER:













DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

SIZE OF THE PROJECT IS 111.92 ACRES
> 92.10 Acres Residential (266 Lots | 2.89 DUA)
> 8.99 Acres MFR (215 Max. Units Allowed)
> 10.83 Acres Commercial (TBD)

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
> 50 Ft Lots 
> Min. Lot Size of 6,000sf

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
> Apartments or Townhomes

ADVANTAGES OF DEVELOPMENT
> Very close proximity to the City of Chester
> Available Water & Sewer
> Great road network to accommodate traffic 

- access to Lancaster Highway (Hwy 9)
- access to Saluda Road (Hwy 121)
- adjacent to JA Cochran Bypass

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
> Has been completed and submitted to SCDOT for review and approval
> Studied intersections will maintain their existing Levels of Service (no improvements required)









VILLAGE DRIVE
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT



DEVELOPER:

ENGINEER:













DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

SIZE OF THE PROJECT IS 111.92 ACRES
> 92.10 Acres Residential (266 Lots | 2.89 DUA)
> 8.99 Acres MFR (215 Max. Units Allowed)
> 10.83 Acres Commercial (TBD)

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
> 50 Ft Lots 
> Min. Lot Size of 6,000sf

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
> Apartments or Townhomes

ADVANTAGES OF DEVELOPMENT
> Very close proximity to the City of Chester
> Available Water & Sewer
> Great road network to accommodate traffic 

- access to Lancaster Highway (Hwy 9)
- access to Saluda Road (Hwy 121)
- adjacent to JA Cochran Bypass

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
> Has been completed and submitted to SCDOT for review and approval
> Studied intersections will maintain their existing Levels of Service (no improvements required)









VILLAGE DRIVE
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT



DEVELOPER:

ENGINEER:













DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

SIZE OF THE PROJECT IS 111.92 ACRES
> 92.10 Acres Residential (266 Lots | 2.89 DUA)
> 8.99 Acres MFR (215 Max. Units Allowed)
> 10.83 Acres Commercial (TBD)

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
> 50 Ft Lots 
> Min. Lot Size of 6,000sf

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
> Apartments or Townhomes

ADVANTAGES OF DEVELOPMENT
> Very close proximity to the City of Chester
> Available Water & Sewer
> Great road network to accommodate traffic 

- access to Lancaster Highway (Hwy 9)
- access to Saluda Road (Hwy 121)
- adjacent to JA Cochran Bypass

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
> Has been completed and submitted to SCDOT for review and approval
> Studied intersections will maintain their existing Levels of Service (no improvements required)











STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
            
   RECYCLING & DISPOSAL CONTRACT 

 
 This Scrap Tire Recycling and Disposal Contract (“Contract”) made and entered 
on this 1st. day of September 2021 (“Anniversary Date”), by and between the County of 
Chester, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, hereafter referred to as 
“County” and U.S. Tire Recycling at 6322 Poplar Tent Road Concord, North Carolina 
28027, herein after referred to as the “Contractor”. 
 
 WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, the County chooses to recycle its scrap tires when possible and has 
determined that this service can best be provided through a service contract with a 
qualified firm: and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor is qualified to provide collection, transportation 
recycling and disposal of tires and other scrap rubber and has the necessary equipment, 
personnel, facilities, expertise, financial resources and management skills to provide a 
high level of service. 
 
1) Scrap Tire Volume Generated 
 
 It is unknown how many scrap tires that the County receives at its landfill 
annually.  However, the Contractor understands that the County does not control the 
scrap tire waste stream and that there is no guaranteed volume that will be received 
during the term of this Contract. 
 
2) Recycling and Disposal Services 
 
 a)  Contractor Responsibilities 
 
 The Contractor agrees to stage a van trailer at the County’s designated sites and to 
transport, process, recycle or disposes of all scrap tires loaded in said trailer.  
Furthermore, the Contractor shall be responsible for hauling, processing, recycling and/or 
disposing of all scrap tires in accordance with all applicable state, federal, and local 
environmental and safety laws, regulations, permits, ordinances, and standards. 
 
 b) County Responsibilities 
 
 The County shall made available ample space in a manner acceptable to 
Contractor to provide for efficient handling of containers and materials contained therein. 
 
 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
3) Term 
 
 This Contract shall be in full force and effect for a period of five (5) years from 
the date of execution, unless terminated earlier per Section 8 (b) with two (2) 
automatically extended annual renewal terms at the end of each successive term unless 
either party notifies the other party in writing 30 days prior to the expiration of the term 
of his desire to terminate this contract, in which case the term shall end as scheduled. 
 
 
4)  Time of Performance 
 
 U. S. Tire Recycling shall remove each loaded container from the Chester County 
Landfill and replace with an empty container within forty-eight (48) hours from receipt of 
notice from Chester County that the tires are ready for removal, with the exception of 
weekends and nationally recognized holidays. U. S. Tire Recycling reserves the right to 
reject or  apply a special handling fee at a rate of $300.00 per ton for any and all tires that appear to have 
been burned, buried or shredded prior to transfer to their facility. 
 
5) Invoices 
 
 The Contractor shall invoice the County for scrap tires collected and transported 
by email each Tuesday of the month if any transactions have occurred since the previous 
invoice.  Each invoice shall be according to the fees per Section 6.  Each invoice shall 
include a dated listing of the loads collected and transported.   
 
 
6)  Collection Disposal Fees 
 
 The County shall pay Contractor, for the work described in Section 2, including 
processing and transportation of all passenger and truck tires, the sum of $114.00 per ton, 
with a ten (10) ton minimum per load requirement. Freight will be charged at $365.00 per 
load in addition to a $20.00 Environmental Fee charge for each trailer pulled from the 
county collection site. Off road tires are charged at the same rate of $114.00 per ton plus 
an additional $0.16 per pound with no minimum tonnage. A Consumer Price Index 
adjustment will be calculated in March of each year and will be applied to the contract 
price each year on the July 1. U. S. Tire Recycling reserves the right to reject or apply a 
special handling fee at a rate of $300.00 per ton for any and all tires that appear to have 
been burned, buried or shredded prior to transfer to their facility 
  
 
 
 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 Fuel surcharge is calculated on a base price of fuel being in the range of $2.25 to 
$2.49 per gallon (no surcharge will apply until costs reach $2.25) Total round trip 132 
miles for this transaction are multiplied times the incremental adjustment shown with that 
average price per gallon.  Average price increments with corresponding surcharge are 
listed below.  The price of diesel fuel for the purposes of this agreement shall be the 
diesel price for the East Coast/Lower Atlantic. The average price is verified weekly from 
the U.S. Energy Information Administration and can be accessed by internet at 
http://www.eia.gov/petroleum/gasdiesel/ or by phone at 202-586-6966.  The price 
adjustments per mile are listed below: 
 

Price per Gallon Price Adjustment per mile 
 

   $2.50 - $2.74              +0.30 
   $2.75 - $2.99   +0.35 
   $3.00 - $3.24   +0.40 
   $3.25 - $3.49   +0.45 
   $3.50 - $3.74                          +0.50 
   $3.75 - $3.99                          +0.55 
                                    $4.00 - $4.24                          +0.60 
                                    $4.25 - $4.49                          +0.65 
                                    $4.50 - $4.74                          +0.70 
                                    $4.75 - $4.99                          +0.75 
                                    $5.00 - $5.24                          +0.80  
               
                         Formula follows with the price of fuel 
 
In the event of a discrepancy between Contractor and County records, such invoice shall 
be paid less the amount of the discrepancy.  A notice of discrepancy with supporting 
documentation, shall be promptly sent to Contractor and the two parties shall  
reconcile records and invoices at the earliest possible date.  Such reconciliation shall be 
reflected on the next invoice from Contractor. 
 
7) Taxes, etc. clause 
 
 Should the local, state, or federal government impose a franchise fee or tax, 
Contractor will pass this fee on to the County, or Contractor and County will agree to 
cancel the contract.  Should such termination or rescission occur before performance of 
the activity herein provided is begun, all parties hereto shall be released from the 
provisions hereof without liability or obligation.  Should such termination or rescission 
occur after such performance is begun, the liability and obligations of the parties shall be 
limited to settlement of all proper claims based upon performance prior to termination or 
rescission of this contract.  
 
 

http://www.eia.gov/petroleum/gasdiesel/


STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 
In no case shall Company be liable or responsible for any other cost of obtaining, 
preparing, maintaining, or operating the facilities for deposit of said tires nor shall 
Company be liable or responsible for any of the cost of obtaining, preparing, maintaining 
or operating the location for assembly, collection, and removal of said tires. 
  
 
8)  Termination 
  
            This Contract may be terminated according to either of the following provisions: 
 

a) Default:  If either party hereto deems the other party hereto to be in default of 
any provision herein, the claiming party shall provide notice in writing to the defaulting 
party of said default.  If said defaulting party fails to correct the default within twenty 
(20) business days from the date of notice, the other party may terminate this Contract 
immediately.  In case of such termination the party terminating this contract shall 
forthwith give the other party written notice of such termination. 
 

b) Mutual Agreement:  This Contract may be terminated by mutual agreement of 
the parties hereto, at any time. 
 
9) Force Majeure 
 
 a) Suspension of Performance:  The performance of its duties and obligations 
hereunder by either party shall be suspended to the extent that such performance, in 
whole or in part, shall be rendered impracticable by Force Majeure. 
 
 b) Definition:  Force Majeure - For purposes herein, Force Majeure shall be 
termed as any event or occurrence of any nature or kind in respect to the duties herein 
that is beyond the control of and occurs without the negligence of the party invoking the 
same,  including without limitation:  acts of God or of a public enemy, acts of 
government or governmental authority in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, 
wars, riots, fires, floods, explosions, pandemic or epidemics, boycotts, excessive fuel 
prices, blackouts, strikes, labor disputes, equipment breakdowns, and any transportation 
problem directly affecting or inhibiting pickups. 
 
 c) Notice:  In the event that either party hereto determines that a Force majeure 
has occurred, or it is likely to occur, said party shall promptly furnish to the other party 
notice in writing of such Force Majeure, setting forth the nature of such problem, the  
anticipated effect on said party’s performance hereunder and when normal performance 
may be expected.  In the event of excessive fuel prices of over the road diesel, Contractor 
and County will negotiate satisfactory terms for both parties involved. 
 
 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
 

d) No Unreasonable Delay:  Any party hereto whose performance hereunder is 
delayed or prevented by a factor of Force Majeure, and said party subsequently invokes 
Force Majeure, shall take all reasonable steps to resume, with the least possible delay, 
compliance with its obligations hereunder, provided that said party shall not be required 
to settle any strike or labor dispute on terms not acceptable to it. 
 
 
10) Representations 

 
10.1)  The Contractor represents, warrants and covenants to County that: 

 
 a) It is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of the State of North Carolina, and is duly and validly qualified to conduct business 
and is in good standing in all jurisdictions in which such qualification is necessary. 
 
 b) The execution, delivery and performance of this Contract have been duly and 
validly authorized by all corporate action required to be taken and will not result in a 
breach of, constitute a Default under, or violate the terms of Contractor’s organizational 
agreement, or any rule, regulation, judgment, decree, order, or agreement to which 
Contractor is a parry or by which it may be bound. 
 

c) Contractor shall comply with all environmental and other applicable 
governmental permits, guidelines and actions during the term hereof, and has paid and  
will pay all valid charges and assessments in connection therewith.  Contractor hereby 
indemnifies County against any punitive or other action resulting from or associated with 
Contractor’s failure to do so. 
 
 
 
10.2) County represents, warrants and covenants to Contractor that: 
 
 a) The execution, delivery and performance of this Contract by County have been 
duly and validly authorized by all corporate action required to be taken and will not result 
in a breach of, constitute a Default under, or violate the terms of decree, order, contract or 
agreement to which County is a party or by which it may be bound.  Concurrently 
herewith, County tenders unto Contractor a clocked copy of the Ordinance from its 
County Council authorizing execution and delivery of this Contract. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
11) Insurance 

 
Contractor does hereby attest that it has general liability insurance coverage 

(which covers all its operations including but not limited to motor vehicle transportation)  
in the minimum amount of one million ($1,000,000.00) dollars.  A “Certificate of 
Insurance” affirming said coverage is attached hereto as an integral part of this Contract.  
County shall be listed as an additional insured under  Certificate of Insurance and a copy 
of this endorsement shall be provided to County within ten (10) days signing of Contract.  
Contractor shall at all times during the existence of this contract maintain liability 
insurance coverage in the amount not less than one million ($1,000,000.00) dollars. 
 
12) Hold Harmless 
 
 The Contractor does hereby indemnify and hold the County free and harmless 
from liability on account of injury or damage to persons or property which may result 
from the negligent conduct or operations arising out of the business of collection, 
removal and transportation of tires in accordance with the terms of this contract; and, in 
the event that any suit or proceeding is brought against the County at law or in equity, 
either independently or jointly with the Contractor, or either of them, on account of such 
negligent acts, the Contractor will defend the County in any such suit or proceeding at the  
cost of the Contractor, and in the event of a final judgment of decree being brought 
against either of them, the Contractor will pay such judgment or comply with such decree 
with all costs and expenses of whatsoever nature and hold the County harmless 
therefrom. 
 
 
13) Disputes 
 
 Any matter that arises hereunder that cannot be settled in negotiations between the 
parties hereto shall be handled according to the laws, legal processes and courts of the 
State of South Carolina.  Any final decision therefrom shall be valid and binding upon the 
parties hereto and enforceable at law.  Venue for any action arising out of this contract 
shall be the Common Pleas Court with jurisdiction in  Chester, SC 
 
14) Miscellaneous 
 
 14.1) Contractor agrees to be an equal opportunity employer and not discriminate 
based on race, color, religion, age, disability, national origin or sex. 
 

14.2) This Contract may be changed only by agreement in writing and signed by 
both parties hereto. 
  
 14.3) This Contract embodies the entire contract between the parties and 
supersedes any prior agreements and understanding, oral and/or written. 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

7 | P a g e  
 

 14.4) This Contract may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original. 
 
 14.5) This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of South Carolina. 
 
 14.6) The sections and heading in the Contract are for reference purposes only 
and shall not affect in any way the meaning of this Contract or any part herein. 
   
 14.7) In the event that any provision of this Contract shall be determined to be 
invalid, this Contract thereupon shall be deemed to have been amended to eliminate such 
provisions so the remaining provisions of this Contract shall be valid and binding. 
 
 14.8)  All notices and other formal communications hereunder shall be made in 
writing and given or delivered by certified United States mail to the principal and at the 
address designated below.  Acceptance thereof shall be deemed to constitute receipt. 
 
 
Contractor      County 
       County Supervisor 
U.S. Tire Recycling     Chester County 
6322 Poplar Tent Road    1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass 
Concord, North Carolina 28027   Chester, SC 29706 
 
   With copy to:   Joanie Winters, Esquire 
       Winters Law Firm 
       105 Main Street 
       Chester, South Carolina  29706 
   
 
 
 14.9) Any waiver made hereto shall be deemed to be limited in application to the 
matters explicitly referred to therein and shall neither be construed as, nor entitle the 
other party to a waiver by said party of any similar matter. 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 14.10) This Contract shall be binding upon and insure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, but neither this Contract nor 
any of the rights, interests, or obligations hereunder shall be assigned by either party 
hereto without the prior written consent of the other party hereto, which consent shall not 
be unreasonable withheld or delayed. 
 
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

CHESTER COUNTY 

8 | P a g e  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their respective hands and seals as 
of the date first above written. 
 
 
 
      CHESTER COUNTY 
 
 
 
      BY________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
      U.S. TIRE RECYCLING 
 
 
 
      BY___________________________ 
             
 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
____________________________ 
 
















	1. 9-20-2021 CCTC Special Called Agenda
	2. 9-7-2021 CCTC Minutes
	3. District 6 Roads
	4. 9-20-2021 Agenda
	5.  9-7-2021 Minutes
	6. 9-10-2021 Special Called minutes
	7. 2021-10 Ordinance for Distribution of LOST
	8. 2021-11 Project Magma - MCBP Ordinance 2012 Park - Chester County - 4842-4729-1885 1jw.v.1
	9. 2021-12 Chester County Development Agreement Ordinance - GENERAL Requirements (2021.09.08)
	10. ED Status  and Gateway Quarterly Report
	11.  CCMA21-02 Chester Land Holdings_Redacted
	12. CCMA21-04 Chester Land Holdings_Redacted
	13. CCMA21-20 Todd Marion Love_Redacted
	14. CCMA21-21 HLC Holdings_Redacted
	15. CCMA21-22 Earl Evans_Redacted
	16. CCMA21-24 US Development_Redacted
	17. CCMA21-25 US Development_Redacted
	18. CCMA21-26 US Development_Redacted
	19. CCMA21-27 Chris and Alma Hoskins_Redacted
	20. U.S.Tire Reycling Contract Revision 9-13-21jw.v2
	21. Millage Rates
	22. Lewis Fire request_2021-09-15-101908468



